
Document last changed: 6/30/2010 2:58 PM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Tuesday, July 06, 2010 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

7:00 p.m. Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Presentation on Currituck County Community Center   

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Service:  Request for a special use permit for an outdoor tour 
operator located at 795 Sunset Blvd., Tax Map 116D, Parcel 6A, 
Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-20 Andrew Copeland:  
Request for a conditional zoning from RA (Mixed Residential) to 
CD-GB (Conditional District - General Business) for 2.59 acres 
located at 1617 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 23, Parcel 33H, 
Moyock Township. 

Item 6 Appointment to Fire and EMS Advisory Board   

Item 7 Appointment to Stormwater Advisory Board   

Item 8 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Approval of June 21, 2010, Minutes 
3. Resolution to declare obsolete property surplus as requested by 

Lower Currituck VFD 
4. Approval of Knotts Island VFD new map indicating the 5 mile 

insurance district 
5. Resolution to DOT for funding improvements for Pine Circle 

Item 9 Commissioner’s Report 

1



Document last changed: 6/30/2010 2:58 PM 

 
Item 10 County Manager’s Report 

Item 11 Closed Session: 
1. According to 143-318.11(5)to discuss acquisition of real 

property located on Shortcut Road, Property owner, Doc Horace 
Etheridge Jr., to be used for any public purpose 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 1 of 9 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: July 6, 2010 
PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 

 
ITEM:   PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo – Special Use Permit for Outdoor 

Tour Operator 
 

LOCATION: 795 Sunset Blvd. Suite D, Corolla, NC 

TAX ID: 116D-000-006A-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: General Business (GB)    
  
PRESENT USE: Office 
 
OWNER:  Karichelle Realty 
   795 Sunset Blvd. Suite A 
   Corolla, NC 27927 
 
APPLICANT:  Jennifer Marshall 
   111 Evans Street 
   Grandy, NC 27939 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Natural State RO1 
SOUTH Commercial GB 
EAST: Commercial GB 
WEST: Commercial GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: .12 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: N/A 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: N/A  
 
UTILITIES: Southern Outer Banks Water System & Monteray Shores 

Wastewater Treatment Plant    
 
PUD ALLOCATION: Buck Island PUD Land Area:  70.8 acres, Open Space: 27.23 acres, 

Commercial Allocation: 8.66 acres  
 
 
 
 
 

3



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 2 of 9 

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
 

1. The applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for the operation of Horse Tours from two 
26-passenger vehicles as well as the use of the same vehicles as limousine/shuttle 
buses. 

2. The applicant will operate from the office located at 795 Sunset Blvd in Timbuck II 
Shopping Center; the buses will be parked at the Harbinger Center at 8845 Caratoke 
Highway. 

3. Loading and unloading of passengers will occur at rental homes and/or hotels and not 
from the property at Timbuck II Shopping Center. 

4. The Special Use Permit application pertains to the property located at 795 Sunset 
Boulevard.  Associated activities that may occur off-site are subject to the conditions 
included in the approved Permit. 

 
 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would 
otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to 
conditions of approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding 
properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special 

use indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The Board of Commissioners adopted an ordinance on September 21, 2009 that 

established outdoor tour operators as a specific land use.  Subsequently, any 
business operating as a vehicular tour operator with a base operation within the 
jurisdiction of Currituck County is required to apply for a new special use permit. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The applicant’s proposal will be required to maintain compliance with all UDO 

requirements and any additional requirements of the Board of Commissioners. 
b. Adequate parking is not available at the TimBuck II Shopping Center; therefore, the 

applicant cannot load or unload patrons from their business location. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The parcel is located in Timbuck II Shopping Center which is a well-established 
commercial area. 

 

4



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 3 of 9 

5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The parcel is located in Timbuck II Shopping Center which is a well-established 

commercial area. 
b. Since loading and unloading of patrons cannot occur at TimBuck II Shopping Center, 

the applicant must pick-up patrons at single family dwellings within residential areas.  
Considering the size of the transport vehicles, this may create compatibility issues 
within established residential areas. 

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted 

plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Corolla subarea.  
Insert LUP classification narrative.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of 
the plan, some are as follows: 
a. POLICY ED1: new and expanding industries and businesses should be especially 

encouraged that: 1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and natural 
amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 

b. POLICY HP3: Development of the tourism and educational potential of the area's 
architectural, historic and cultural resources shall be encouraged. 
 

7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 
including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county 
facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining 
when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be 
in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. This application should have no impact on the County’s ability to provide public 

facilities. 
 
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee 
recommends approval subject to the following plan corrections: 
 
Planning 
1.  Provide site plan with adequate parking for both tour buses. 

Albemarle Regional Health Services 
2.  Approved as long as business provides customer access to a public restroom facility 
when needed 

 

 

 

 

 

5



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 4 of 9 

IV. PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The proposed development appears to not meet the criteria for granting a Special Use Permit 
for an Outdoor Tour Operator in Timbuck II Shopping Center and therefore staff recommends 
denial until such time as the following items can be corrected or addressed: 
 

• Adequate parking must be provided for employees, patrons and tour vehicles at the 
office location in TimBuck II Shopping Center. 

 
Should the Board of Commissioners approve this request, staff recommends the following 
permit conditions: 

 
1. This special use permit shall be valid provided that satellite parking for the tour buses is 

consistently maintained with staff approval. 
2. The tour buses shall not at any time be parked or standing on the property at Timbuck II 

Shopping Center. 
3. Loading and unloading of tour participants shall not occur from the property at Timbuck II 

Shopping Center, or any other commercial location where patrons are leaving 
unauthorized personal vehicles. 

4. There shall be a maximum of 6 tours per day. 
5. All horse tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day. 
6. Tour vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display the 

company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 
7. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. Beaches 

and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances. Tours 
shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

8. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of vehicles as part of 
the special use permit approval process. 

9. This special use permit shall be reviewed administratively on an annual basis and a 
report shall be filed with the Currituck County Board of Commissioners detailing the 
nature of any complaints received by the Planning Department.  At the discretion of the 
Code Enforcement Officer or Board of Commissioners, the special use permit shall be 
subject to revocation or modification by the permit issuing authority following a public 
hearing.  

 
 
V.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board moved to deny PB 10-19 request for a special use permit because it will 
endanger the public health and will injure the value of abutting property and will not be in 
harmony with the area in which it is located. 

6



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 5 of 9 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (6-8-10) 
Mr. West stated he has some concern with giving a Special Use Permit for someone to 
operate at TimBuck II and then they cannot load or unload at TimBuck II. A lot of the streets 
and cul-de-sacs where the rental homes are may not allow for such a large bus to turn 
around without going on adjacent properties.  
 
Ms. Wilson stated that if renters are in a private community how would the bus get access 
to pick them up. 
 
Ms. Marshall stated that Currituck Club did allow them to come in and pick up customers. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked Ms. Marshall if she has read all the staff recommendations and if she 
was in agreement with them. 
 
Ms. Marshall stated yes.  Ms. Marshall stated they are trying to establish closer parking. 
The office space at TimBuck II is for reservations only.  
 
Mr. Wright asked in regards to the UDO that when the taxi service is not in service, vehicles 
shall be stored in a secure compound, fully enclosed with a fence and gate and the taxi 
service compound shall be fully screened from adjacent rights-of-way. Does this request 
meet these requirements? 
 
Mr. Woody stated the Harbinger Center does. 
 
Ms. Wilson asked Ms. Marshall if they have ever encountered a problem with the first 
customers who are picked up being on the bus too long to the end of the tour. 
 
Ms. Marshall stated that most cases customers are picked up at one house or two houses 
at the most.  Ms. Marshall stated they try to very respectful of people who live in Corolla, 
mind all traffic laws and try not to block anyone’s right of passage.  
 
Ms. Wilson asked if the same routes would be used for the tours as in the past in the four 
wheel drive area. 
 
Ms. Marshall stated yes. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that several residents in the Carova beach area who live on dead end 
streets that have limited turn around have asked that this be addressed.  Ms. Wilson 
suggested the route be altered so the tours not go down dead end streets. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that in the staff recommendations tour bus(s) shall not be parked or 
standing and loading and unloading cannot be done at TimBuck II. Mr. Wright stated this 
will take away from the core of the business.   
 
Ms. Taylor stated she has concerns that residential neighborhoods will turn into businesses 
as the bus comes through.  
 
Mr. Midgette asked Ms. Marshall if she would agree that this case be tabled until a 
resolution to the parking situation is reached. 
 

7



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 6 of 9 

Ms. Marshall stated she is working on a resolution and would like to pick up customers at 
their residents if allowed.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Clark moved to deny PB 10-19 that the special use permit will endanger the public 
health and will injure the value of abutting property and will not be in harmony with the area 
in which it is located. Ms. Taylor seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  

8



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

9



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 8 of 9 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Jennifer Marshall, OBX Monster Bus & Limo Service 
 
From: Jennie Newbern, Planning 
 
Date: May 13, 2010 
 
Re:  PB 10-19 Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the May 19, 2010 TRC meeting.  In order to be 
scheduled for the June 8, 2010 Planning Board meeting, please address all comments by 3:00 
p.m. on May 24, 2010.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC meeting.  
 
Planning, Jennie Newbern 
 

1. Provide the total number of parking spaces in Timbuck II. Provide parking spaces required 
for existing businesses in Timbuck II. 

2. Buses may not be parked on Parcel #0116-000-0010-0000 that is zoned RO1 and is not 
part of Timbuck II Shopping Center.  Please show where both buses will be parked. 

3. Provide the number of employees that will operate on the largest shift. 
4. A traffic impact analysis may be performed by a professional traffic engineer or licensed 

professional for a potential parking reduction justification and determination. 
5. Please specify the nature and use of the proposed taxi service. 
6. The UDO specifies the following conditions for taxi services: 

• The taxi shall display no form of advertising other than that of the taxi company itself. 
• When not in service, vehicles shall be stored in a secure compound, fully enclosed with a 

fence and gate.  The compound surface area shall be paved or graveled to not less 
than three inches deep and compacted and graded for proper drainage. 

• The taxi service compound shall be fully screened from adjacent rights-of-way and 
residentially zoned properties using a combination of opaque fencing and/or evergreen 
plant materials. 

7. Provide the number of horse tours that will operate each day. 
8. Provide the duration of each horse tour. 
9. All horse tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day. 
10. Tour vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display the 

company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 
11. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. Beaches 

and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances. Tours shall 
also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

12. There shall be one parking space required for every vehicle seating 1-5 persons, two 
parking spaces required for every vehicle seating 6-10 persons etc., and one parking space 
required for every two employees.  If any additional activities or uses occur on-site, 
additional parking may be required per the Unified Development Ordinance.   

 
 

10



 
 

PB 10-19 OBX Monster Bus & Limo 
Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 

Page 9 of 9 

Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved  
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
No Comment 
 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Approved  
 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Reviewed 
 
NCDOT, Roger Ward 
Reviewed - No Comment 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
No Comment 
 
NCDENR, Land Quality, Pat McClain 
Reviewed –No erosion and sedimentation control plan submission required. 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed - Approved as long as business provides customer access to a public restroom facility 
when needed 
 
Office of State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbott  
Approved - The general area has already been surveyed for archaeological sites. No previously 
recorded sites are noted in the project area.  An archaeological survey is not recommended.  No 
additional comments. 
 
Please note that comments were not received from the following: 
 
Charter Communications, Sam Scilabba 
Dominion Power, Troy Lindsey 
US Army Corps of Engineers, Tom Steffens 
Embarq, Hester Jones 
NCDENR, Environmental Management, Roger Thorpe 
NCDENR, Public Water, Siraj Chohan 
Currituck County Sheriff, Susan Johnson 
Currituck County Local Volunteer Fire Department 
Currituck County Schools, Bruce MacDonald 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 
Currituck County Economic Development, Peter Bishop 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 

11



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 1 of 14 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING DATE: JULY 6, 2010 

Conditional District Zoning Map Amendment:  
PB 10-20 Andrew Copeland 

 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone 2.59 acres from RA to CD-GB (does not include site 
plan approval). 

 
LOCATION:  Located at 1617 Caratoke Highway, Moyock, NC. 
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 23, Parcels 33H 

0023000033H0000 
  
OWNER: Andrew Copeland 

1406 Elm Avenue 
Chesapeake VA  23325 

 
APPLICANT: Same 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Mixed Residential (RA) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS: Excluded uses include:  ABC Stores, Animal Services, 

Automotive Service and Repair, Boat Service and Repair, Car 
Washes, Drive-thru Uses (office and service), Dry Cleaning and 
Laundromats, Funeral Homes, Hotels/Motels; Tattoo and Body 
Piercing Studios, Taxi Service, Automotive Sales and Rentals, 
Boat Sales and Rentals, Convenience Stores; Drive-thru Uses 
(Retail), Farmer or Craft Markets, Flea Marketc, Heavy 
Equipment Sales and Rental, Manufactured/Modular Home 
sales; Restaurants (with drive-thru), Restaurants (without drive-
thru), Retail Uses, Shopping Centers, Bars and Nightclubs, 
Landfills (all types), Mini Warehousing, Automobile Parking, 
Temporary Tents and Tent Sales, Telecommunications 
Towers, Utility Facilities.   

 
Outdoor storage shall be completely screened from view from 
street or adjacent properties. 
 

DENSITY: The General Business (GB) zoning district allows a residential 
gross density of 1.09 du/acre. 

 

12



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 2 of 14 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Vacant A 
SOUTH: Single Family Dwelling RA 
EAST: Church GB 
WEST: Single Family Dwelling RA 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Unpermitted transportation and outdoor storage operation.  A 

notice of violation was sent to the owner on September 14, 
2009 for placing a construction trailer on the property without 
proper zoning permits.  The land was also clear-cut and filled 
which is being investigated by the US Army Corps of Engineers 
for potential violations.  NCDENR Division of Land Quality 
issued a grubbing and clearing permit after the work was 
complete.  An erosion and sedimentation control permit is 
necessary for work to continue. 

 
PURPOSE LAND USE:  Warehouse-Offices 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Rural within the 

Moyock Sub-Area.  
 

The purpose of the Rural class is to provide for agriculture, 
forestry, and other allied uses traditionally associated with a 
rural area. 
 
Heightened development interest in the Moyock area has 
brought with it pressure for more subdivisions, as well as the 
retail services that follow such development.  It also brings with 
it concerns about heavier traffic, increased stormwater runoff, 
and drainage issues.  The policy emphasis is that it is not the 
County’s intention to develop all of Moyock intensely but rather 
create specific service centers. 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this 
request: 
 
POLICY ES1: New development shall be permitted to locate 
only in areas with SUITABLE SOIL and where ADEQUATE 
INFRASTRUCTURE is available. For existing development 
located on poor soils, and where sewage treatment upgrades 
are necessary, engineering solutions may be supported, 
provided that environmental concerns are fully addressed. 
POLICY CD4: HIGHWAY ORIENTED COMMERCIAL USES 
should be clustered along segments of highways and contain 
land uses which are mutually compatible and reinforcing in use 

13



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 3 of 14 

and design; they should be designed in such a way as to 
minimize signage, access points, and to prevent unsightly, 
dysfunctional STRIP DEVELOPMENT.  
POLICY CD5: Incompatible or poorly planned COMMERCIAL 
ENCROACHMENT within or immediately adjoining existing 
residential areas shall be prohibited. Such incompatible 
encroachments often include, but are not limited to, large-scale 
commercial uses or automobile-oriented commercial uses such 
as service stations, car lots, car washes, drive through 
restaurants, and the like. 
POLICY ED1: NEW AND EXPANDING INDUSTRIES AND 
BUSINESSES should be especially encouraged that: 1) 
diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and (3) are compatible with the 
environmental quality and natural amenity-based economy of 
Currituck County. 
POLICY CA1: The important economic, tourism, and 
community image benefits of attractive, functional MAJOR 
HIGHWAY CORRIDORS through Currituck County shall be 
recognized. Such highway corridors, beginning with US 158 
and NC 168, shall receive priority attention for improved 
appearance and development standards, including driveway 
access, landscaping, buffering, signage, lighting and tree 
preservation. 
 

COMMUNITY MEETING: Community meeting was held on March 9, 2010, and the report 
is attached. 

 
PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The Moyock Fire Department provides fire protection for this 

area.  Electric, telephone, cable television, and public water are 
available.    

 
FLOOD ZONE: Flood Zone AE (5.4). 
 
WETLANDS: According to the US Army Corps of Engineers, the site may 

contain  wetlands.  The Corps is requiring a wetland delineation 
and will visit the site to see if a violation occurred during the 
clearing and filling of the lot.  The site visit date has not been 
set as of the mailing of this case analysis. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the entire property 

contains not suitable soils.   
 
DRAINAGE: Two major drainage ditches as defined by Soil and Water run 

along this property.  The Willie Lead Ditch follows the eastern 
property line and the South Ditch follows the northern property 
line. 

14



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 4 of 14 

 
 
 
STAFF  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends denial of the request to establish 2.59 acres 

to Conditional District- General Business (CD-GB) from Mixed 
Residential (RA) based on the following: 

 
1. There appears to be ample land zoned General Business in 

the county to meet existing needs and uses. This request 
does not appear to comply with Section 12.5.2 of the UDO, 
which requires an extraordinary showing of public need or 
demand.  

a. Total GB zoned property = 4,278 acres 
b. Total GB zoned property developed for commercial 

use = 1,167 acres (27%) 
c. Percentage of GB zoned property currently vacant or 

not used for commercial purposes = 73% 
 
2. The proposed request is not in general compliance with the 

Rural Service designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and 
the Moyock Sub-Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
3. The proposed zoning conditions appear to be inconsistent 

with the objectives of the 2006 Land Use Plan. (LUP 
Policies ES1, CD4, CD9, CD5, ED1, CA1)      

 
4. Property was evaluated by ARHS(Currituck County Health 

Dept.) on May 21, 2008 for septic system approval and was 
determined to be UNSUITABLE for sewage treatment and 
disposal due to unsuitable soil structure and unsuitable soil 
wetness.   The site may be suitable for a sand lined trench 
system. 

 
5. Kyle Barnes, Army Corps – Property appears to be 

wetlands.  Wetland delineation required.  Potential 
wetland violation since property was cleared and filled 
without permit.  Site visit required. 

 
PLANNING BOARD 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Board moved to deny PB 10-20 due to 

inconsistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and staff 
recommendations.  

15



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 5 of 14 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (6-8-10) 
Mr. Hyman stated he represented Mr. Copeland. Mr. Hyman stated Mr. Copeland will not be 
running a distribution center from this site rather Mr. Copeland’s business will be a truck broker. 
Mr. Hyman stated the site plan will show screening will be put up so it would not be visible from 
the sides.  The building will look like a house from the front.  Mr. Hyman provided pictures of the 
site from the church side and from the inside of the property looking out. Mr. Hyman stated they 
did have a community meeting where he explained what a conditional zoning is and what they 
are asking for. If the property was sold the conditions still apply to the property. Mr. Hyman 
stated again that this will be a truck broker business and not a distribution center.   
 
Mr. Midgette asked if his client knew from the start what the property was zoned. 
 
Mr. Copeland stated that when he purchased the property it was being sold as a commercial 
property that could be rezoned. 
 
Mr. Hyman provided a flood elevation and septic permit for commercial property. 
 
Ms. Spellman stated there was no application on file with the county for Mr. Copeland to clear 
the land in 2009.  Ms. Spellman stated the trucks are very loud and next to a daycare facility. 
Ms. Spellman stated she is against this request.   
 
Mr. Woody stated you would not need a permit from the county to clear land on property you 
own. You may need one from the State of NC depending on what you will be doing. 
 
Mr. West stated that you do not need a permit to clear your land, but if you are disturbing more 
than one acre you would need a Sediment Control Plan from the Sediment Control Board so 
that any dirt that is disturbed will not run off into adjoining properties. 
 
Ms. White stated that you can remove trees but if you remove the tree stumps then that is 
considered land disturbing and then you are in need of a permit from the Sediment and Erosion 
Board from the State of NC.   
 
Ms. Dozier stated she lives within 100 yards of Mr. Copeland property. There is no barrier 
between her property and Mr. Copeland’s.  Ms. Dozier stated Mr. Copeland hauled tons of sand 
onto the property. Ms. Dozier stated one Friday evening there was loud music, slamming of 
doors and lights shinning into her house. Another night after 10:00 p.m. Mr. Copeland started 
his truck which was very loud. Ms. Dozier stated their community has been a quiet community. 
Ms. Dozier is asking the planning board to deny this request.  
 
Mr. Powell stated he would like to keep their community a quiet and safe one. Mr. Powell stated 
he has lived in this community over 30 years and has seen fires over on Mr. Copeland’s 
property. Mr. Powell is asking that this request be denied. 
 
Bishop Powell stated that he is speaking for the church which is adjacent to Mr. Copeland’s 
property. Bishop Powell stated he is opposed to Mr. Copeland having a commercial lot next to 
the church and this would be detrimental to the community if this was approved. Bishop Powell 
stated Mr. Copeland came onto the church property without permission last week to take 
pictures. A staff member was afraid to get out of her car because she thought he was taking 
pictures of her and the Child Care Center that operates at the church which has thirty to forty 

16



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 6 of 14 

children per day. Bishop Powell stated he is deeply concerned as the pastor of the church and 
owner of the Child Care Center and asked that this request be denied.   
 
Mr. Hyman stated his client is a truck broker.  Mr. Hyman stated since this is a conditional 
district zoning request conditions could be recommended.  Mr. Hyman stated if this request was 
approved a site plan would come back to the Planning Board for review. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs moved to deny PB 10-20 due to inconsistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and 
staff recommendations. Mr. West seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

17



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 7 of 14 

 
 

 

Google Imagery Date:  April 7, 2010 

18



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 8 of 14 

 
 

 
 

19



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 9 of 14 

Sample Site Plat – Not for Official Approval 

 
 
 
 

20



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 10 of 14 

      Currituck County 
Planning Department 

Post Office Box 70 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055 
FAX 252-232-3026 

TO:  Andrew Copeland 
  Eddie Hyman 
 
FROM: Tammy Glave, CZO 
  Planner II 
 
DATE:  May 13, 2010  
 
SUBJECT: Andrew Copeland, Conditional Zoning 
  May 19, 2010 TRC Comments (Post TRC Comments) 
 
The following comments have been received for the May 19, 2010 TRC meeting.  In 
order to be scheduled for the June 8, 2010 Planning Board meeting, please address all 
comments and resubmit a corrected plan by 3:00 p.m. on May 24, 2010.  TRC 
comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Zoning (Tammy Glave  252-232-6025): 
Denied: 

1. The proposed request is not in general compliance with the Rural Service 
designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the Moyock Sub-Area Policy 
Emphasis. 

2. The proposed zoning conditions appear to be inconsistent with the objectives of 
the 2006 Land Use Plan. (LUP Policies ES1, CD4, CD9, CD5, ED1, CA1)      

3. There appears to be ample land zoned General Business in the county to meet 
existing needs and uses. This request does not appear to comply with Section 
12.5.2 of the UDO, which requires an extraordinary showing of public need or 
demand.  
 Total GB zoned property = 4,278 acres 
 Total GB zoned property developed for commercial use = 1,167 acres (27%) 
 Percentage of GB zoned property currently vacant or not used for commercial 

purposes = 73% 
 

Albemarle Regional Health Services (Joe Hobbs, 252-232-6603) 
Denied: 

1. Property was evaluated by ARHS on May 21, 2008 for septic system approval 
and was determined to be UNSUITABLE for sewage treatment and disposal due 
to unsuitable soil structure and unsuitable soil wetness conditions.  Please 
consult with Kevin Carver, R.S. at 252-232-6603.  (Mr. Copeland said that 
Kevin Carver had approved the site for a sand lined trench system and 
would change the perk test to read ‘provisionally suitable.’  He will provide 

21



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 11 of 14 

paper work once he receives it from Mr. Carver.  Mr. Hobbs will talk to Mr. 
Carver) 

 
NCDENR Land Quality (Pat McClain, 252-946-6481) 
Reviewed with comment: 

1. An erosion and sedimentation control plan must be submitted to and approved by 
Land Quality prior to commencing any land disturbing activity.  Note:  Erosion 
Sedimentation Control permit not obtained prior to clearing, grading, and filling 
lot.  Potential Violation.  Site visit required.  (Mr. Hyman said that a Clearing 
and Grubbing permit was recently issued.  If the site is not developed, Mr. 
Copeland must stabilize the site with seed/sod.  If site work will continue, 
Mr. Copeland must obtain and Erosion and Sedimentation Control permit.) 

 
US Army Corps of Engineers (Kyle Barnes, 910-251-4584) 
Reviewed with comment: 

1. The property carries the potential to have wetlands jurisdictional by the US Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE). It is my recommendation that the property be 
reviewed for juridictional wetlands. Any impacts to jurisdictional wetlands will 
require a permit from the USACE.  Note:  Potential wetland violation since 
property was cleared, graded, and filled without permit.  Site visit required. 

 
County Engineer (Eric Weatherly, 252-232-6035) 
Approved with corrections: 

1. State stormwater and erosion control permits will be required. 
2. It appears that more than an acre of the site has already been disturbed. Provide 

additional information on permitting requirements to date. 
 

Public Utilities (Pat Irwin, 252-232-2769) 
Approved with comment: 

1. Commercial buildings require 1" meters. The nearest fire hydrant is 470' from the 
northwest corner of the property. 

 
Currituck County Emergency Management (James Mims, 252-232-4024) 
Approved with corrections: 

1. Need to see fire hydrant located within 400' of all portions of structure measured 
as hose would come off the back of the truck. 

2. Need to see template of fire apparatus turnaround. 
3. Need to see a specification noted that the fire apparatus access will hold 75,000 

lbs. in all weather conditions. 
4. Need the location and specifications for any proposed above ground tanks. 
5. Note: Any security fence must have no less than a 20' opening. The opening 

shall not be encumbered by latches, hinges, or wheels. 
 
 
 
 

22



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 12 of 14 

Soil and Water (Mike Doxey, 252-232-3360) 
Approved with correction: 

1. If fill has been brought in or will be brought in higher than adjoining properties a 
Land Dist. Permit required. Comply with county and state stormwater, sediment 
and erosion requirements. 

 
NCDOT (Roger Ward,  252-331-4737) 
Approved with comment: 

1. Will require a driveway permit from DOT. 
 
Information Technology (Harry Lee, 252-232-2034) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation (Jason Weeks, 252-232-3007) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management (Charlan Owens, 252-264-3901) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
NC State Archeology (Lawrence Abbott, 919-807-6554) 
Approved with comment: 

1. No previously recorded archaeological sites noted within the project area. An 
archaeological survey is not recommended. No additional comments.. 

 
 
Please note that comments were not received from the following: 
Currituck County Building Inspections (Spence Castello, 252-232-6020) 
Currituck County Sheriff (Susan Johnson, 252-453-8204)    
Currituck County Economic Development (Peter Bishop, 252-232-6015) 
NC Wildlife (Maria Dunn, 252-948-3916) 
NCDENR Aquifer Protection (David May, 252-946-6481) 
NCDENR Environmental Health/Onsite Wastewater (Bob Uebler, 252-948-3914) 
NCDENR Environmental Management (Roger Thorpe, 252-948-3923) 
NCDENR Marine Fisheries (Kevin Hart, 252-948-3985)  
NCDENR Public Water (Siraj Chohan, 919-715-3235)  
NCDENR Water Quality (Kim Colson 919-733-5083, Ext. 540)  
NCDENR Water Quality/Surface Water Protection (Al Hodge, 252-946-6481) 
Embarq, Hester Jones    
Dominion Power, Troy Lindsey  
Local Volunteer Fire Chief  
Charter Communications, Sam Scilabba 
Currituck County Schools (Bruce MacDonald, 252-232-2223) 
    

23



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 13 of 14 

 
 
 

24



 
PB 10-20 

Andrew Copeland 
Page 14 of 14 

 

25



FIRE AND EMS ADVISORY BOARD
2 Year Term

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Hugh McCain-Corolla District 1 3/1/2010 2nd      4/1/2012

Rick Galganski - Corolla District 2 5/4/2009 4/1/2011

Carl Soltow-Grandy* District 3 Barry Nelms 3/1/2010 2nd      4/1/2012

Albert Stegner-Bells Island District 4 5/4/2009 4/1/2011

Mick Lesinski-Moyock District 5 3/1/2010 2nd      4/1/2012
Chris Dailey - Moyock 5/4/2009 4/1/2011
Stanley Griggs At-Large 3/1/2010 1st      4/1/2012

Greg Laput-Moyock At-Large 3/1/2010 2nd      4/1/2012

*To Be Replaced

26



Page 1 of 2

Gwen Keene

From Kim Ferrell

Sent Friday June 18 2010 1015AM

To Gwen Keene

Subject FW Reappointment

Gwen Michael Cherrys term on Stormwnter Advisory Board expires63010 please put him on agenda to

getreappointed nt your earliest convenience His is for a one year term to expire63011Thanks
Kim

Kim Dozier Ferrell
Currituck SWCD
District Administrator
PO Box 69
Currituck NC 27929
2522323360Phone
2522324094 Fax
kferrelacocurrituckncus

From michael cherrymailtosollifeeast@yahoocom
Sent Fri6182010 1007AM
To Kim Ferrell

Subject Re Reappointment

Kim

I would be glad to serve again

Michael

On Fri61810 Kim Ferrell Irferrell@cocurrituckncuswrote

From Kim Ferrell kferrell@cocurrituckncus
Subject Reappointment
To Cherry Michael sollifeeast@yahoocom
Date Friday June 18 2010 834AM

Michael your term on stormwater advisory board will be up630 do you want to serve another 1

year term if so Iwill hove commissoners reappoint you Thanks Kim

Kim Dozier Ferrell
Currituck SWCD
District Administrator
PO Box 69
Currituck NC 27929
2522323360Phone

6182010 27



STORMWATER ADVISORY 60AR MEM6ER5

APPOINTED BY BOC6407

Term

Jerry Old Tulls Bay Watershed 209 63012
PO Box 505 3 year term
Moyock NC 27958
Cell 2073002
Home 2323861

Wade Morgan Indiantown Watershed 20963011
627 Juniper Ridge Rd 2 year term
Shawboro NC 27973
Cell 2072888
Home 2322139

Charlie Dozier Currituck Watershed 20963011
PO Box 262 2 year term
Jarvisburg NC 27947
Cell 2022444
Home 4912444

Michael Cherry Outer Banks Watershed 20963010
530 Ocean Trail 1 year term
Corolla NC 27927
Home 4533415
Cell 2676677

Harold Capps Sr Knotts IsGibbs Woods Watershed 20963012
188 Blue Heron Lane 3 year term
Knotts Island NC 27950
Cell 7576362615
Home 4299026
Work 4293770

Updated 209

28



STORMWATER ADVISORY BOARD

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Michael Cherry* District 1 Vance Aydlett February 2009 June 2010

Charlie Dozier District 2 February 2009 June 2011

District 3

Wade Morgan District 4 February 2009 June 2011

Jerry Old District 5 February 2009 June 2012

Harold Capps, Sr. At-Large February 2009 June 2012

At-Large

* May Be Reappointed

29



Number 2011001

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

57878-596100 Professional Services 5,445$                       
57878-588000 Contingency 5,445$                     

5,445$                       5,445$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  6th day of July, 2010 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2011.

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Central Sewer Construction (57) - No change.

Moyock Central Sewer System (57878) - To transfer contingency funds for Arcadis 
amendment #2:  Design & Permittin of the gravity line and manholes, preparation of 
applicable specifications, and Partial Construction Administration; sewer permit; erosion 
permit.

30



Number 2011002

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

29690-454000 Contracted Services 1,000$                       
29390-499900 Fund Balance Appropriated 1,000$                     

1,000$                       1,000$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  6th day of July, 2010 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2011.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Equipment Replacement Fund (29) - Increased by $1,000.

Fire Equipment Replacement (29690) - To increase appropriation for the Moyock debt 
service payment.

31



Number 2011003

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50551-590000 Capital Outlay 20,713$                     
50380-481000 Investment Earnings 20,713$                   

20,713$                     20,713$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  6th day of July, 2010 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2011.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Facilities (50) - Increased by $20,713.

Airport Construction (50551) - To increase appropriations for a storage building for the tractor 
to maintain the Currituck County Regional Airport.

32



Number 2011004

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10390-499900 Fund Balance Appropriated 21,000$                     
10420-589000 OSD Reserve 21,000$                   

21,000$                     21,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  6th day of July, 2010 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2011.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $21,000.

Governing Body (10420) - To decrease appropriations for reserve funds.

33



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
June 21, 2010 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 6:00 p.m. prior to the regular 
scheduled meeting for a presentation by the Department of 
Transportation on the Secondary Road Program. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the 
Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members present:  
Chairman O’Neal, Commissioners Etheridge, Aydlett, Gregory, 
Rorer, Nelms and Taylor. 
 
Invocation Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman O’Neal gave the invocation. 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to add to the consent agenda 
approval of secondary roads program and ordinance for 
Knotts Island Ruritans.  Commissioner Gregory seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Nelms and 
Commissioner Taylor voting no. 
Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Resolution Recognizing David Coelho and Travis Kemp   

Item 4 Proclamation Honoring the U-10 (Under 10) Soccer Team    

Item 5 Recognition of Tourism Staff   

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action on FY 2010-2011 Budget   

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-14 Corolla Wild Horse Tours, 
LLC: Request for a special use permit for an outdoor tour operator 
located at 1210 Ocean Trail, Tax Map 114, Parcel 3F, Poplar 
Branch-Outer Banks Township. 

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-16 McMillan Tours:  Request for 
a special use permit for an Outdoor Recreational Facility 
(Private) located at 2223 Teal Road, Tax Map 87A, Parcel 1, 
Fruitville Township. 

Item 9 Consideration and Action:  PB 87-56  Monteray Shores, PUD: Request 
for a major amendment of Special Use Permit to designate 1.10 
acres identified as General Business (GB) to Outer Banks Standard 
Residential (RO1) within the PUD.  

34



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   2 

Item 10 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-15 Shingle Landing Farm:  
Request to rezone 15 acres from Agricultural (A) to Conditional 
District-Residential (CD-R). The property is located at 116, 121, 
122, 125, and 126 Fox Lane, Tax Map 9C, Parcels 3,4,5,6, and 7, 
Moyock Township. 

Item 11 Consideration and Action:  PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy 
Motorsports Park:  Request for renewal of a special use permit for 
a privately owned outdoor recreation facility located at 5243 
Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 83, Parcel 6A, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 12 Discussion of Ordinance prohibiting unattended property on Beach   

Item 13 Appointment to Planning Board   

Item 14 Appointment to Fire and EMS Advisory Board   

Item 15 Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of $2,200 matching funds for Library Computers 
2. Adoption of Corolla Resort Special Use Permit 
3. Request to waive tipping fee for Tammy Kelly  
4. Approval of June 7, 2010, Minutes 
5.  Resolution supporting DOT Secondary Road Program 
6.  Ordinance to allow alcohol at Knotts Island Ruritan Club 

Item 16 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 17 County Manager’s Report 

Item 18 Closed Session: 
1. pursuant to GS 143-318.11(3) to consult with attorney in order 

to preserve the attorney-client privilege 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Call to Order 

Public Hearing and Action on FY 2010-2011 Budget 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period. 

Allen Ives, President of Turnpike Properties, and Rolf 
Blizzard both object to the findings and that proper 
procedures were not followed during the hearing for the 
request made by Corolla Club & Resort. They also stated 
that the vote was in conflict of evidence and proceedings. 

35



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   3 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated the issues brought up 
could be reviewed by Superior Court. 

Bob Kohler, American Legion Post 288, stated that they 
would bring back the Vietnam Memorial Wall on October 14 to 
the Currituck Sound Park.  He also reviewed the procedure 
for unserviceable American Flags. 

Charles Carter, Tea Party Patriots, expressed concerns with 
the YMCA project. 

John Snowden, Maple, expressed concerns with YMCA project 
and public records for this project. 

Chairman O’Neal stated that at the next meeting YMCA staff 
will make a presentation on this project. 

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, reviewed the Recreation Study 
done in 1990 and study by East Carolina in 92. 

Karen McCalpin, announced the Wild Horse Days in July. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
public comment period. 

Resolution Recognizing David Coelho and Travis Kemp   

continued 

Proclamation Honoring the U-10 (Under 10) Soccer Team   

The Board of Commissioners recognized the Under 10 Soccer 
Team. 

PROCLAMATION 
HONORING 

THE U-10 (UNDER-10) SOCCER TEAM 
 

 
WHEREAS, 12 boys and girls who are students at Currituck 
County Schools play on a select Soccer Team affiliated with 
the U-10 (Under 10) Soccer Leagues in North Carolina and 
Virginia; and 
 
WHEREAS, Coach Tony Vardaro has volunteered his time and 
talent working with the team as they practice year-round 
and travel to games; and  
  
WHEREAS, the team has most recently participated in and won 
a state-wide tournament in Greensboro, North Carolina, and  
 

36



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   4 

WHEREAS, the team has also won a Spring tournament in the 
Tidewater, Virginia, Soccer League;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners that we acknowledge the talents, 
skills, teamwork, sportsmanship, and success of the 
Currituck County members of the U-10 Soccer Team, and we do 
hereby extend our congratulations and this expression of 
our pride in their successes. 

Recognition of Tourism Staff   

The Board recognized the Tourism Staff for their 
accomplishments and awards. 

Public Hearing and Action on FY 2010-2011 Budget   

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, reviewed the budget presented 
at the last meeting. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to adopt the budget as 
presented.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK   
BUDGET ORDINANCE   
For the Year Ending June 30, 2011   
      
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Currituck, North Carolina that the following  
estimated resources, appropriations, and memoranda are adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2010  
and ending June 30, 2011. 
      
SECTION 1.  GENERAL FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Ad Valorem Taxes   $         25,051,800  
   Other Taxes and Licenses  4,922,750  
   Intergovernmental Revenues  3,365,858  
   Permits and Fees  1,868,818  
   Sales and Services  613,500  
   Investment Earnings  400,000  
   Miscellaneous  251,000  
     36,473,726  
      
   Transfers In  5,503,384  
   Fund Balance Appropriated  3,195,544  
     8,698,928  
      

37



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   5 

       TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $         45,172,654  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Administration   $              491,939  
   Legal  328,350  
   Governing Body  152,339  
   Elections  156,938  
   Finance  343,052  
   Information Technology Services  600,723  
   Human Resources  135,810  
   Public Information  113,201  
   Tax  481,327  
   Public Works  1,535,666  
   Public Utilities  183,434  
   Register of Deeds  648,175  
   Court Facilities   184,377  
   Agency Appropriations  38,200  
   Central Services  755,275  
   Sheriff  5,173,054  
   Detention Center  1,995,897  
   Animal Control  398,184  
   Jury Commission  1,800  
   Emergency Medical Services  5,199,197  
   Emergency Management  125,546  
   Communications  769,516  
   Inspections                   508,763  
   Fire Services  111,822  
       Moyock Vol Fire Department  220,000  
       Crawford Vol Fire Department  291,000  
       Lower Currituck Vol Fire Department  285,000  
       Corolla Vol Fire & Rescue Squad  285,000  
       Carova Bch Vol Fire Department  187,000  
       Knotts Island Vol Fire Department  195,000  
       Contingency  43,874  
   Medical Examiner  9,500  
   Airport  411,107  
   Inter County Transit Authority  196,443  
   Soil Conservation  132,322  
   Forestry  76,250  
   Cooperative Extension  452,266  
   Economic Development  168,014  
   Planning                   639,723  
   Health Administration  127,000  
   Mental Health  62,520  
   Social Services Administration  2,743,379  
   Public Assistance  1,434,121  
   County Assistance  49,875  
   Juvenile Justice Programs  107,457  
   Parks & Recreation  675,391  
   Rural Center  778,415  
   Library  516,023  
   Senior Center  307,606  
   FIT Communities                  4,172.00  

38



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   6 

   Local Current Expense  8,720,781  
   Capital Outlay  990,000  
   College of the Albemarle  75,000  
   Bonds Payable  865,000  
   Notes Payable  2,066,715  
   Interest  456,840  
   Appropriations to Other Funds  1,167,275  
      
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $         45,172,654  
      
SECTION 2.  TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Other taxes and licenses  8,968,273  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $           8,968,273  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Tourism Promotion  3,011,254  
   Tourism Related Expenditures  5,957,019  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $           8,968,273  
      
SECTION 3.  CAROVA BEACH SERVICE DISTRICT FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Fund Balance Appropriated  278,655  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              278,655  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  278,655  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              278,655  
      
SECTION 4.  REVALUATION FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Investment earnings  5,000  
   Transfer In  121,000  
   Fund Balance Appropriated  74,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              200,000  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  200,000  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              200,000  
      
SECTION 5.  EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Investment earnings  2,000  
   Transfer In  267,000  
   Fund Balance Appropriated                   248,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              517,000  

39



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   7 

      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  517,000  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              517,000  
      
SECTION 6.  EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Other taxes and licenses  247,800  
   Investment earnings                       5,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              252,800  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  252,800  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              252,800  
      
SECTION 7.  GUINEA MILL WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Special district taxes  10,588  
   Investment earnings                          750  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $                11,338  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  11,338  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $                11,338  
      
SECTION 8.  HOG BRIDGE DITCH WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT 
FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Special district taxes  963  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $                     963  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  963  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $                     963  

      
SECTION 9.  MOYOCK WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Special district taxes  12,488  
   Investment earnings                          250  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $                12,738  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  12,738  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $                12,738  
      
SECTION 10. NORTHWEST WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND   

40



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   8 

      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Special district taxes  1,723  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $                  1,723  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  1,723  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $                  1,723  
      
SECTION 11. WHALEHEAD WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Special district taxes  366,520  
   Investment earnings  7,500  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              374,020  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  374,020  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              374,020  
      
SECTION 12. CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Other taxes and licenses  1,216,969  
   Investment earnings  25,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $           1,241,969  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Transfers out $ 1,241,969  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $           1,241,969  
      
SECTION 13. SCHOOL CAPITAL FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Other taxes and licenses  959,998  
   Investment earnings  10,002  
   Fund Balance Appropriated  20,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              990,000  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Transfers out  990,000  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              990,000  
      
SECTION 14. TRANSFER TAX CAPITAL FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Other taxes and licenses  1,600,000  
   Investment earnings  40,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $           1,640,000  
      

41



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   9 

 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  700  
   Contingency  339,300  
   Transfers out  1,300,000  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $           1,640,000  
      
SECTION 15. LAND BANKING FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Transfers in  300,000  
   Fund Balance Appropriated  330,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              630,000  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Transfers out  630,000  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              630,000  
      
SECTION 16. OCEAN SANDS WATER AND SEWER FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Operating revenues  885,900  
   Non-operating revenues  100,000  
   Retained Earnings Appropriated  9,137  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              995,037  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Administration  30,197  
   Water Treatment Operations  496,875  
   Sewer Treatment Operations  467,965  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              995,037  
      
SECTION 17. MAINLAND WATER FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Operating revenues  2,928,667  
   Non-operating revenues  5,000  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $           2,933,667  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Administration  192,354  
   Water Treatment Operations  1,094,055  
   Debt Service  1,627,258  
   Capital Outlay  20,000  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $           2,933,667  
      
SECTION 18. NEWTOWN ROAD SEWER FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Operating revenues  8,500  
   Non-operating revenues  1,750  
   Retained earnings appropriated  4,875  

42



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   10 

        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $                15,125  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Sewer Treatment Operations                     15,125  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $                15,125  
      
SECTION 19. SOLID WASTE FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Operating revenues  2,545,000  
   Non-operating revenues  933,393  
   Retained earnings appropriated  964,788  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $           4,443,181  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Administration                   151,419  
   Solid Waste Operations                4,228,394  
   Capital Outlay                     63,368  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $           4,443,181  
      
SECTION 20. MOYOCK COMMONS SEWER FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Special district taxes  54,591  
   Operating revenues  68,571  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              123,162  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Administration                       6,063  
   Sewer Operations                   117,099  
        TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS   $              123,162  
      
SECTION 21. SOUTHERN OUTER BANKS WATER FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Operating revenues  1,877,000  
   Non-operating revenues  110,000  
   Retained earnings appropriated  64,639  
        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $           2,051,639  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Administration  151,785  
   Water Operations  1,894,854  
   Capital assets  5,000  
      $           2,051,639  
      
SECTION 22. POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUND   
      
 A. Estimated Resources:   
   Retiree benefits  204,022  

43



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   11 

        TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES   $              204,022  
      
 B. Appropriations:   
   Operations  204,022  
      $              204,022  
      
SECTION 23. AD VALOREM TAX RATE ESTABLISHED   
      
 
 
 

There is hereby levied a tax rate of Thirty-two cents ($0.32) per One Hundred dollars ($100) valuation of all 
real and personal property situated in the County of Currituck on January 1, 2010 for the purpose of raising the 
revenue listed as "Ad Valorem Taxes" in Section 1, Part A of this ordinance. 

      
 
 
 

The rate of tax is based on estimated total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $8,230,000,000 
and an estimated rate of collection of 96.25%.  The estimated rate of collection is based on the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2009. 

      
SECTION 24. SPECIAL DISTRICT TAX RATES ESTABLISHED   
      
 
 

 

There is hereby levied tax rates (in cents) for Special Districts per One Hundred dollars ($100) valuation of all 
real and personal property situated in said district on January 1, 2010 for the purpose of raising the revenue 
listed as "Special District Taxes" in Part A, Sections 6 through 10 and Section 19 of this ordinance. 

      
   Guinea Mill Watershed Improvement District  0.010  
   Hog Bridge Ditch Watershed Improvement District  0.010  
   Moyock Watershed Improvement District  0.150  
   Northwest Watershed Improvement District  0.200  
   Whalehead Watershed Improvement District  0.040  
   Moyock Commons Sewer District  0.245  

 
SECTION 25. ANIMAL TAX RATE ESTABLISHED   
      
 
 

There is hereby levied an animal tax of Three dollars ($3.00) for all male and spayed female dogs and Six dollars 
($6.00) for all fertile female dogs listed for taxes as of January 1, 2010. 

      
SECTION 26. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL RATE ESTABLISHED 
        
   

 
There is hereby established a disposal fee pursuant to Section 11-5(a) of the Solid Waste Ordinance of Sixty-Eight 
dollars ($68.00) per ton for in-County waste and Seventy-Eight dollars ($78.00) per ton for out-of-County waste. 

  

        
   
   

 

There is hereby levied an annual solid waste collection and disposal availability fee pursuant to Section 11-5(b) of 
the Solid Waste Ordinance of Two Hundred Thirty-Five dollars ($235) for all units on the Southern Outer Banks 
and Ninety-Nine dollars ($99) for all units located elsewhere within the County of Currituck. 

  

        
SECTION 27. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION     
        
   

 

Employee compensation is included in summary form.  Individual employee salaries are hereby approved and set 
as presented in the supporting documents presented as part of the budget deliberation process and officially filed 
with the Human Resources Director. 

  

44



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   12 

        
SECTION 28. OTHER FEES     
        
   
 

The County of Currituck charges various fees.  These fees are detailed in the master Fee schedule that is presented 
in the appendix of the budget document.   

        
SECTION 29. DISBURSEMENT OF SCHOOL APPROPRIATIONS     
        
   
 

The amount here within appropriated as School Local Current Expense shall be disbursed to the school finance 
officer in twelve (12) equal monthly installments.   

        
   
 

The amount here within appropriated as School Capital Outlay shall be disbursed to the school finance officer 
according to a mutually agreed disbursing schedule.   

   

 
A quarterly progress report shall be furnished ny the Board of Education to the Board of Commissioners detailing 
the extent to which all school capital outlay and school capital construction monies have been expended. 

  

        
SECTION 30. SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS     
        
   
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the funds as contained herein under the 
following conditions:   

        
 a.    
     
   

He may transfer amounts within the same department within the same fund up to Ten Thousand dollars 
($10,000) providing an official report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners.   

     
 b.    
   

He may transfer amounts between departments within the same fund up to One Thousand dollars ($1,000) 
providing an official report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.   

        
 c.    
     
   

He may appropriate fund balance to salaries and benefits in order to increase salaries of employees who 
have met requirements to increase certifications required by the County providing an official report on 
such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.   

        
 d.  He may make inter-fund loans for a period of not more than sixty (60) days.   
     
 e.  He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency line items within any funds.   
        
SECTION 31. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS     
        
   
 

The County Manager and the County Attorney are hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions:   

        
 a.    
   

They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not require formal competitive bid 
procedures.   

        
 b.    

   

They may award contracts, reject bids, re-advertise for bids, waive bid bonds or bid deposit requirements, 
and waive performance and payment bond requirements for all formal bids of apparatus, supplies, 
materials and equipment as stated in G. S. 143-129. 

  

        
 c.    
     
     
   

They may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and materials, or equipment which 
are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of one 
year or less and within budgeted departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted 
departmental appropriations.   

45



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   13 

     
 d.    
   

They may execute grant agreements to and from public and non-profit organizations which are within 
budgeted appropriations, unless a grantor organization requires execution by the Board of Commissioners.   

        
 e.    
   

They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a duration of one year or 
less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations.   

        
SECTION 32. MEMORANDA     
        
 A.  Officers:     
   Daniel F. Scanlon II is the Budget Officer     
   Gwen H. Keene is the Clerk to the Board     
   Mary Gilbert is the Deputy Clerk to the Board     
   Sandra L. Hill is the Finance Director     
   Bridget T. Brinkley is the Deputy Finance Director     
   Tracy L. Sample, Tax Collector     
 B.  Facsimile Signatures:     
     
     

   

The use of facsimile signature machines, signature stamps, or similar devices in signing checks and drafts 
is hereby authorized; however, off-line checks and pre-audit certification requires in the minimum of one 
original authorizing signature.  The Finance Director is hereby charged with the custody of all facsimile 
stamps, plates or other devices. 

  

        
 C.  Official Depositories     
   The official depositories of the County of Currituck are:     
      East Carolina Bank, Currituck, North Carolina     
      The Bank of Currituck, Moyock, North Carolina     
      Bank of America, North Carolina     
      Bank of the Commonwealth, North Carolina     
      Bank of Hampton Roads (dba Gateway Bank), North Carolina     
      Branch Bank and Trust, North Carolina     
        North Carolina Cash Management Trust, Charlotte, North Carolina 
      Wachovia Bank, North Carolina     
      Wells Fargo, North Carolina     
        
 D.    
   

Daily deposits are required by all departments when the amount of money held on had sums to Two 
Hundred Fifty dollars ($250).   

        
 E.  Returned Check or Electronic Funds Transfer Fees:     
     
     
     

   

The County will assess a returned check charge consistent with G.S. 25-3-512 on all checks or electronic 
funds transfers returned to the County due to insufficient or unavailable funds, except for the payment of 
taxes.  The returned check fee will be $25.00 per item returned.  This fee will also be charged for ACH or 
credit card transactions that are not paid due to insufficient funds. 

  

        
 F.  Policy on Appropriations:     
     
     
   

The Board of County Commissioners will not consider supplemental appropriations for any service, 
function, purpose or activity that could have been reasonably considered during the budget process.   

        
SECTION 33. USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE     
        
   
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this budget ordinance for administration of the budget and 
for the accounting system.   

46



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   14 

 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-14 Corolla Wild Horse 
Tours, LLC: Request for a special use permit for an outdoor 
tour operator located at 1210 Ocean Trail, Tax Map 114, 
Parcel 3F, Poplar Branch-Outer Banks Township. 

Sworn testimony was taken before comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING DATE:  June 21, 2010 

Special Use Permit 
PB 10-14 Corolla Wild Horse Tours 

 
 
ITEM:  SPECIAL USE PERMIT - OUTDOOR TOUR 

OPERATOR 
 
LOCATION: 1210 Ocean Trail 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: General Business (GB)  
 
TAX ID:  0114000003F0000 
 
OWNER: Corolla Companies/Todd Ottenstein 
 
APPLICANT: Bob White 
 Corolla Wild Horse Tours LLC 
 1159H Austin Street 
 Corolla, NC 27927 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Commercial Zoned GB 
SOUTH: Residential Zoned RO1 
EAST: Residential Zoned RO1 
WEST: Residential Zoned RO1 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full 

Service within the Corolla sub-area. 
 
 
I.  NARRATIVE 

 

47



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   15 

1. The applicant is requesting a Special Use permit for conducting horse 
tours in the off-road areas of Corolla using two 15 passenger vehicles.   

 
2. The Board of Commissioners adopted an ordinance on September 21, 

2009 that established outdoor tour operators as a specific land use.   
Subsequently, any business operating as a vehicular tour operator with a 
base operation within the jurisdiction of Currituck County is required to 
apply for a new special use permit. 

 
3. The Special Use Permit application pertains to the property located at 

1210 Ocean Trail.  Associated activities that may occur off-site are subject 
to the conditions included in the approved Permit. 

 
4. There are several policies in the Currituck County 2006 Land Use Plan 

that support this type of endeavor.  Some are as follows: 
a. POLICY ED1: new and expanding industries and businesses 

should be especially encouraged that: 1) diversify the local 
economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly skilled labor force, and 
3) are compatible with the environmental quality and natural 
amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 

b. POLICY HP3: Development of the tourism and educational 
potential of the area's architectural, historic and cultural resources 
shall be encouraged. 
     

It appears this request is consistent with the policies and objectives of the 
Land Use Plan provided care is taken to ensure the outdoor tours are 
conducted in an environmentally sustainable manner.  The Planning 
Department is particularly encouraged to see a growing emphasis on eco-
tourism industries that expose the general public to the natural resources of 
Currituck County.  

 
 
II.  QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility 
in the administration of the UDO. Through the Special Use Permit procedure, 
property uses which would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain 
districts can be developed subject to Conditions of Approval to minimize any 
negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The 
criteria and suggested findings of fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete. 

 

48



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   16 

2. COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The applicant's revised site plan dated 4/23/10 is in compliance with the 

UDO. 
 
3. The proposed use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use will not materially endanger the public health and 

safety.  Use of portable restroom facilities has been approved by 
Albemarle Regional Health Services with the condition that porta-johns 
be located as close to the tour shed as possible.  

 
4. The proposed use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or 

abutting property.   
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use is in an existing commercial area and should have no 

impact on adjoining property values.  The Unified Development 
Ordinance indicates that outdoor tour operators are a permitted land use 
with a Special Use Permit in a General Business (GB) zoning district. 

b. The porta-johns facilities approved by the Albemarle Regional Health 
Service shall not be visible from NC12. 

c. When not in use, all horse tour vehicles shall be parked toward the rear 
of the facility in order to improve traffic flow and preserve roadside 
aesthetics. 

 
5. The proposed use will be in harmony with the particular neighborhood or 

area in which it is to be located. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The parcel is located in a well established commercial area and is 

therefore in keeping with the character of the surrounding area.   
 
6. The proposed use will be in general conformity with the Land Use Plan, and 

any other plan officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service in the Corolla 

sub area and the proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan. 
 
7. The proposed use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate 

public facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law 
enforcement, and other county facilities.  Applicable state standards and 
guidelines shall be followed for determining when applicable facilities are 
adequate.  Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place 
within two years after the initial approval of the sketch plan.  In the case of 
subdivision and multi-family development at the sketch plan/special use, 
preliminary plat or final plat stage, the Board of Commissioners may 
establish time limits on the number of lots/units available for development to 
assure adequate public facilities are available. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Approval of this request should have no impact on public facilities. 

49



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   17 

 
III.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposal appears to meet the criteria for granting a Special Use Permit for 
the property at 1210 Ocean Trail and staff recommends APPROVAL with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. All improvements to the site shall be made in accordance with the revised 
site plan dated April 23, 2010. 

2. Porta-Johns facilities as approved by the Albemarle Regional Health 
Service shall be located as close to the tour shed as possible and shall not 
be visible from NC12. 

3. When not in use, all horse tour vehicles shall be parked toward the rear of 
the facility in order to improve traffic flow and preserve roadside 
aesthetics.  Screening from NC12 shall be provided with landscaping or 
opaque fencing. 

4. All tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day.  Tag-a-long 
tours are permitted as long as the lead vehicle is operated by an 
employee of the tour company and subsequent vehicles are under the 
employee’s supervision. 

5. Tour/Rental vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that 
clearly display the company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of 
four inches.   

6.  Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: 
Article II. Beaches and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck 
County Code of Ordinances. Tours shall also operate in accordance with 
all State and Federal laws. 

7. There shall be one parking space required per five persons of seating 
capacity, and one parking space required for every two employees.  If any 
additional activities or uses occur on-site, additional parking may be 
required per the Unified Development Ordinance.   

8. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns 
may be used as long as the parking requirements and all other conditions 
of this permit are met.  Reserve vehicles must be stored at an approved 
location. 

9. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of 
vehicles as part of the special use permit approval process.  Staff 
recommends a maximum of two vehicles with a seating capacity not to 
exceed 15 persons for each vehicle. 

10. This special use permit shall be reviewed administratively on an annual 
basis and a report shall be filed with the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners detailing the nature of any complaints received by the 
Planning Department.  At the discretion of the Code Enforcement Officer 
or Board of Commissioners, the special use permit shall be subject to 
revocation or modification by the permit issuing authority following a public 
hearing. 

 
IV.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 

50



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   18 

The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 10-14 with the findings of fact 
and staff recommendations. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the evidence part of the hearing. 

Tom Nash, Attorney for Jay Bender, Meridith Banks, and 
Scott Trabue, presented pictures of the proposed site. He 
urged the Commissioners not to approve the permit because 
it does not meet the requirements. 

Commissioner Nelms questioned the number of vehicles. 

Meridith Banks, stated that the business was too large and 
not in the best interest of the county. 

Jay Bender, opposes the request. 

Bob White, applicant was present to answer questions and 
comment on the request for a permit. 

Lynne Wilson, Swan Beach, stated that there were too many 
tour operators and requested vehicles be numbered. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
evidence phase of the hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve with findings of fact 
and the staff recommendations included in the case analysis 
and a limit of 2 vehicles with a cumulative capacity of 28 
persons.  Commissioner Rorer seconded the motion. Motion 
carried. 

Commissioner Aydlett directed staff to prepare a moratorium 
ordinance for any new outdoor tour operations that operate 
in the four-wheel drive area as a principle component of 
their business.  The moratorium is intended to provide the 
county with adequate time to study and address any impacts 
outdoor tours may have on the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County.  
Commissioner Rorer seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-16 McMillan Tours:  
Request for a special use permit for an Outdoor 
Recreational Facility (Private) located at 2223 Teal Road, 
Tax Map 87A, Parcel 1, Fruitville Township. 

Sworn testimony was taken prior to comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

51



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   19 

MEETING DATE:  June 21, 2010 
Special Use Permit 

PB 10-16 McMillan Tours 
 
 
ITEM:  SPECIAL USE PERMIT – PRIVATE OUTDOOR 

RECREATIONAL FACILITY 
 
LOCATION: 2223 Teal Rd. – Undeveloped Residential 

Lot 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Outer Banks Limited Access Residential 

(RO2)  
 
TAX ID:  087A00600010004 
 
OWNER: David and Polly McMillan 
 
APPLICANT: David and Polly McMillan 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential RO2 
SOUTH: Residential RO2 
EAST: Residential RO2 
WEST: Residential RO2 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the 

site as Limited Service within the Carova 
sub-area. 

 
I.  NARRATIVE: 
 
1. The applicant is requesting a Special Use permit for a 

Private Outdoor Recreational Facility that includes 
parking of one transport vehicle and mooring of one air 
boat to be used for air boat tours. 

 
2. The transport vehicle will leave the McMillan’s home 

located at 2230 Teal Rd. (subject to approval of a 
residential accessory use home occupation zoning 
permit), will travel to patron’s homes for pick-up, and 
continue to the outdoor recreational facility for 
transfer from transport vehicle to the air boat. 

 
3. The applicant indicates the duration of each tour will 

be approximately 3 hours (one hour vehicular transport 
and two hour boat tour).  Applicant indicates no more 
than two tours will occur each day.      

52



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   20 

 
4. Use of the property will consist of parking and 

loading/unloading patrons from vehicle to air boat.   
 
5. The air boat will travel approximately 5000 feet along 

the canal adjacent to residential property prior to 
reaching open waters. 

 
6. The transport vehicle will travel approximately 12,000 

feet through residential areas from the beach to the 
launch site.   

 
7. There are no proposed structural improvements to the 

property at this time.  However, the applicant has 
plans to construct a single family dwelling on the 
property in the near future.  If a Special Use Permit 
is granted for a private outdoor recreational facility 
on the subject property, construction of a single 
family dwelling will constitute a change of use and the 
SUP will no longer be valid. 

 
8. The applicant has not provided restroom facilities on 

site and intends to use the facilities at Carova Beach 
Park.   

 
9. The following comments on the proposal were received 

from Mike Hoff of US Fish and Wildlife. 
 

The physical location of the proposed airboat tour 
operation is not a concern to us nor do we have the 
jurisdictional capability to comment on the location.  
We do, however, have some concerns regarding where the 
actual tours will occur.  Commercial activity and 
unauthorized airboat usage on refuge marshes is 
prohibited.  If the operator stays off the marshes and 
in state jurisdictional waters it will again fall 
outside our jurisdiction.  As you may be aware we have 
regulations regarding disturbing wildlife and a 
specific regulation regarding disturbance due to 
aircraft.  Airboats are a source of extreme 
disturbance, in some ways similar to aircraft, and we 
limit using ours to when it is the only means of 
accomplishing specific tasks.  The County Game 
Commission's regulation prohibiting using airboats from 
Sept. 1 to April 1 goes a long way in preventing 
disturbance to wintering and transient migratory birds.  
However, migratory bird nesting in our area peaks 
between April 1 and July 1, therefore increasing 
disturbance could negatively impact productivity in 
refuge marshes.  Should the County issue this permit it 

53



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   21 

would help the refuge greatly if there were special 
conditions minimizing use adjacent to refuge marshes.  
 
Section 16 of the Currituck County Game Commission 
Regulations states the following:  The Currituck County 
Game Commission with the approval of the North Carolina 
Wildlife Resources Commission shall have the authority 
to restrict or prohibit the use of air boats on 
Currituck Sound from September 1 to April 1 of each 
year.  All boats powered with gasoline, oil or 
similarly operated engines shall use efficient mufflers 
in Currituck County except when otherwise authorized by 
the Federal Government. 

 
 

II.  TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Technical Review Committee recommends approval subject to 
the following conditions.  
 
1. Jason Litteral, Planner: Two type C and Two Type A  

buffer yards will be required.  Staff may evaluate 
existing vegetation on site to determine if buffer 
yard requirements are met.   

2. Jason Weeks, Currituck County Parks and Recreation:  I 
do not see restroom facilities for customers. 

3. Joe Hobbs, Albemarle Regional Health Services:  Need 
to provide restroom facilities for employees and 
customers at business site.  Submit more details to 
Health Department for review.    
 
 

III.  QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of 
Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the UDO. 
Through the Special Use Permit procedure, property uses 
which would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain 
districts can be developed subject to Conditions of 
Approval to minimize any negative effects they might have 
on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, certain criteria 
must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested findings of 
fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION 
  

54



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   22 

Suggested Findings: 
The application is complete. 

 
2. THE PROPOSED USE IS AMONG THOSE LISTED IN THE TABLE OF 

PERMISSIBLE USES AS A SPECIAL USE INDICATED WITH AN 
“S”. 

  
Suggested Findings: 
Outdoor Recreational Facility (Private) is a permitted 
use in the RO2 district requiring a special use 
permit.  The County has historically classified tour 
launch sites as outdoor recreational facilities.   

 
3. THE CONDITIONS PROPOSED MEET OR EXCEED THE MINIMUM 

REQUIREMENTS OF THIS ORDINANCE. 
 
Suggested Findings: 

• The requirement for buffer yards shall be met 
prior to operation of tours.  Staff will evaluate 
existing vegetation on site and will require 
additional plantings as necessary.   

 
• A zoning permit will be issued for a home 

occupation at 2230 Teal Rd. provided all 
conditions are met and the Special Use Permit for 
an outdoor recreational facility is granted. 

 
• Generally, restroom facilities shall be provided 

for employees and customers at a business site.  
Albemarle Regional Health Services must approve 
an alternative arrangement since there is not a 
commercial storefront associated with this use.   

   
4. THE SPECIAL USE WILL NOT ENDANGER THE PUBLIC HEALTH OR 

SAFETY. 
 
Suggested Findings: 

• The operation of commercial air boat tours in a 
residential canal system that includes 90 degree 
turns creates a safety hazard for recreational 
boat users. 

 
• There is not a commercial storefront associated 

with this use to provide adequate restroom 
facilities for employees and customers, which 
creates a public health concern. 

 

55



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   23 

5. THE SPECIAL USE WILL NOT INJURE THE VALUE OF ADJOINING 
OR ABUTTING PROPERTY AND WILL BE IN HARMONY WITH THE 
AREA IN WHICH IT IS LOCATED.  
 
Suggested Findings: 

• The air boat tour will travel approximately 5000 
feet along the canal directly adjacent to 
residential property prior to reaching open 
waters.  Staff is concerned with potential noise 
disturbance to surrounding properties due to 
frequent high decibel engine noise. 

 
• There are no enforceable conditions minimizing 

airboat use adjacent to the Currituck wildlife 
refuge marshes.  The potential disturbance to 
migratory bird nesting is not in harmony with the 
wildlife refuge. 

  
• Staff is also concerned that approval of this use 

will set a precedent for commercial services of 
this nature in the RO2 zoning district, which may 
increase the potential for injury to adjoining 
property values. 

 
6. THE SPECIAL USE WILL BE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE LAND 

USE PLAN OR OTHER OFFICIALLY ADOPTED PLAN. 
 
Suggested Findings: 
POLICY OB6: Concerning the OFF-ROAD AREAS OF THE OUTER 
BANKS, Currituck County shall not permit or encourage 
the provision of growth-inducing facilities and 
services to these areas, including for example, 
commercial services, centralized sewage treatment and 
hard surface roads. 
 

7.  THE SPECIAL USE WILL NOT EXCEED THE COUNTY'S ABILITY 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING, BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, SCHOOLS, FIRE AND RESCUE, LAW 
ENFORCEMENT, AND OTHER COUNTY FACILITIES. APPLICABLE 
STATE STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES SHALL BE FOLLOWED FOR 
DETERMINING WHEN PUBLIC FACILITIES ARE ADEQUATE. SUCH 
FACILITIES MUST BE IN PLACE OR PROGRAMMED TO BE IN 
PLACE WITHIN TWO YEARS AFTER THE INITIAL APPROVAL OF 
THE PLAN (SKETCH PLAN IN THE CASE OF MAJOR 
SUBDIVISIONS). 
 
Suggested Findings: 
The special use should not exceed the County’s ability 
to provide adequate public facilities.   

56



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   24 

 
 
IV.  PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Submittal as proposed does not meet all the 
requirements for special use permit approval and staff 
recommends denial for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed use will not be in harmony with the 
surrounding area in which it is located for the 
following reasons: 

 
• The use is proposed in one of the more densely 

platted areas of the county.  Uses that generate 
daily traffic and activity are more appropriate 
in less dense areas or along major travel ways. 

 
• The air boat tour will travel approximately 5000 

feet along the canal directly adjacent to 
residential property prior to reaching open 
waters.  Staff is concerned with potential noise 
disturbance to surrounding properties due to 
frequent high decibel engine noise. 

 
• There are no enforceable conditions minimizing 

airboat use adjacent to the Currituck wildlife 
refuge marshes.  The potential disturbance to 
migratory bird nesting is not in harmony with the 
wildlife refuge. 

  
2. The proposed use will endanger the public health and 

safety for the following reasons: 
 

• The operation of commercial air boat tours in a 
residential canal system that includes 90 degree 
turns creates a safety hazard for recreational 
boat users. 

 
• There is not a commercial storefront associated 

with this use to provide adequate restroom 
facilities for employees and customers, which 
creates a public health concern. 

 
3. All other tour based businesses have a store front on 

a commercially zoned parcel from which their tours 
begin and end, and where commercial transactions take 
place.  Generally, these tours occur on roads 
dedicated for public use without a specific 
destination in a residential area.   

57



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   25 

 
4. The tours for the proposed use will begin and end 

within a residential neighborhood from a newly 
established launch site.  The noise generated from 
the commercial use of air boats on a daily basis will 
negatively impact surrounding property values and 
quality of life.  

 
5. Staff is concerned that approval of this special use 

will set a precedent for commercial services of this 
nature in the RO2 district, which will have a 
negative impact on the residential character and 
property values of the surrounding areas.  This is 
supported by Policy OB6 of the 2006 Land Use Plan. 

 
V.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board recommended denial of PB 10-16 due to 
public opposition, safety concerns, and the findings of 
fact and staff recommendations included in the case 
analysis.  
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (5-11-10)  
Mr. McMillan stated that Currituck County Sheriff’s office 
came out with their calibrated decibel reading equipment on 
Tuesday, May 11, 2010 to take readings for their airboat 
tour vessel. The readings were taken at a 25’ distance per 
county requirements to simulate canal driving; at idle, 
61.8 dba and under way, 70 dba. The reading was taken at a 
50’ distance per Coast Guard requirements to simulate 
Currituck Sound driving; on plane at high speed, 84 dba. 
Ms. McMillan stated that North Carolina does not require a 
muffler system, but Currituck County does. Ms. McMillan 
stated Mr. McMillan has installed a muffler system on the 
airboat. Ms. McMillan provided pictures showing the route 
they would be taking during the tours. Ms. McMillan stated 
they would be doing two tours per day that have time limits 
on their tours. The tours do not take place on refuge 
marshes which are clearly marked.  Mr. McMillan stated that 
a condition of the special use permit could be that they 
stay in public trust waters and this would take care of any 
concerns of Mr. Hoff. Ms. McMillan stated airboats have 
been used in the area since the 1970’s.  Property values 
have not dropped because of airboat use.  
 
The Planning Board discussed no restroom facilities for 
customers. 
 
Mr. McMillan stated he could put a Port-a-John on his lot 
behind the storage building.  
 

58



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   26 

Mr. West asked for clarification on the time limit of the 
tour. 
 
Mr. McMillan stated they allow one hour for vehicular 
transport which is pick-up and drop-off and the tour itself 
is two hours.  The tours are for residents and tourist in 
the Corolla area. Mr. McMillan stated on the tours they 
will see horses going back to the marsh area, otters, 
turtles, and fish. It is amazing the wildlife you can see 
on the sound side. 
 
Mr. West asked if the airboat scares the horses or 
wildlife. 
 
Mr. McMillan stated it may scare the birds but just the 
other day they saw horses and a new baby and they just 
looked at them.  
Mr. West asked how many people they will carry on the 
airboat. 
 
Mr. McMillan stated six plus himself. 
 
Ms. Wilson asked the McMillan’s if they have had 
conversations with their neighbors on their feelings about 
the tours. 
 
Ms. McMillan stated they have not had anyone to say 
anything negative to them, but they have heard that Mr. 
Woody has received complaints.  
 
Mr. Wright asked what the position of the Wild Horse Fund 
is. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated the Wild Horse Fund has sent a letter to 
the Planning Board members stating their concerns. One 
concern is that airboats increase turbidity by causing soil 
and organic particles to become suspended in the water 
column.  
 
Mr. McMillan stated that when the airboat is on plane it is 
about one inch in the water so you don’t have anything 
dragging down stirring up the water. 
 
Ms. Wilson clarified that the BOC did approve a special use 
permit for kayaks and segways tour which cannot be compared 
to an airboat tour. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he represents the Knotts Island area 
and he has received calls from thirteen families in 
opposition of the request. Mr. Clark has observed many 

59



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   27 

fishermen, canoes, kayaks, and boats using the canal and 
does not feel airboats are compatible. Mr. Clark is 
concerned with the two blind curves on the canal, docks on 
both sides of canal and when it is low tide hard for one 
boat to get through, and prop wash.    
 
ACTION 
Mr. Clark moved to recommend denial of PB 10-16 due to 
public opposition, safety concerns, and the findings of 
fact and staff recommendations included in the case 
analysis. Ms. Wilson seconded the motion. Ayes: Mr. Clark, 
Ms. Newbern, Ms. Taylor, Ms. Wilson, Mr. Wright, and Mr. 
Midgette. Nays: Mr. West. 
 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. 

Dave McMillan, owner, stated that he was not operating in 
the marsh or refuge. 

Karen McCalpin, Corolla Wild Horse Director, opposes this 
use because it endangers the wild horses and wildlife. 

Kimberlee Hoey, property owner, strongly opposes and read 
several statistics stating why this type of operation 
endangers wildlife. 

Bob Brett, property owner, opposes due to noise and safety 
issues. 

Lynne Wilson, Carova Beach, states that this operation is 
not in conformity with purpose of LUP and request Board to 
deny. 

Betty Lane, Carova Beach, opposes the request due to safety 
and noise concerns. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal close the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to deny with the findings of 
fact and the staff recommendations included in the case 
analysis.  Commissioner Rorer seconded the motion. Motion 
carried. 

Consideration and Action:  PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, PUD: 
Request for a major amendment of Special Use Permit to 
designate 1.10 acres identified as General Business (GB) to 
Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) within the PUD. 

60



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   28 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that Crouse Gray would 
like to make a statement to the Board before you continue 
with request. 

Crouse Gray requested the Board not to proceed with this 
request and the hearing calls for consideration and this 
should be heard as a quasi judicial Board. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, agrees that this should have 
been advertised as a quasi judicial hearing. 

Wyatt Booth, Attorney for Corolla Worship Center, stated 
they were prepared to present case. 

Bob Degabrielle, property owner, requested that the 
commercial allocation be returned. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that a special use 
permit has been issued for the same property. 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to proceed with hearing.  
Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DATE: June 21, 2010 

PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, Planned Unit Development 
 
ITEM:   PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, Planned Unit 

Development, Amended Special Use Permit, to 
designate 1.10 acres of commercial zoning to 
residential (RO1) within the PUD.  
 

LOCATION: Corolla, Monteray Shores, PUD, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

TAX ID: 0116-000-003W-0000   0116-000-0010-0000 
 
ZONING    
DISTRICT: Outer Banks Standard Residential (R01) with 

PUD overlay.   
  PUD Overlay (RO1):  318.94 acres 
  PUD Overlay (GB): 35.56 acres 
  PUD Overlay (RO1): 1.10 acres proposed 
 
PRESENT USE: Planned Unit Development, church site and 

undeveloped lands 

61



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   29 

 
OWNER/ 
APPLICANT: Monteray Shores, Inc. 
   5299 Pennock Point Road 
   Jupiter, FL 
 
   Corolla Worship Center 
   PO Box 668 
   Nags Head, NC  27959 

   
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Open Space/Commercial/Apartments PUD-RO1/GB 
SOUTH Open Space/Undeveloped Commercial PUD-RO1/GB 
EAST: Commercial PUD-RO1/GB 
WEST: Open Space PUD-RO1 
 
 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the 

site as Full Service and Conservation 
within the Corolla subarea. 

 
OPEN SPACE: The required open space for Monteray Shores 

is 35% (124.46 acres). According to the 
proposed development plan Monteray Shores 
provides 37% (131.81 acres) of open space.     

  
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The applicants are seeking an amendment to the special 
use permit that would undo the zoning allocation 
approved by the Board of Commissioners on March 15, 
2010.  The request would reduce the commercial 
allocation by 1.10 acres to residential (RO1) within 
the Monteray Shores PUD.   

• The request is considered a major amendment to the 
Special Use Permit as defined in Section 11.9.2 of the 
UDO.   The amendment requires the approval of the 
permit issuing authority and may be obtained without a 
formal application, public hearing, or payment of any 
additional fee.  

 
 

II. OUTSTANDING TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE COMMENTS: 
Planning 
A. There is a discrepancy between the dedicated green 

area and the NC DENR wastewater permit allocations of 
green area.  (Staff commentary:  Green area is land 
that is set aside for future wastewater needs).  In 

62



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   30 

2007, the original developer of Monteray Shores, PUD, 
dedicated easements and recorded green area maps 
within the PUD.  Approximately two months later, 
Carolina Water submitted a request to NC DENR to 
expand the wastewater treatment facility.  The request 
included a revised map that dedicated additional green 
area on property owned by Monteray Shores, Inc. (the 
original developer).   According to Bob Degabrielle, 
Monteray Shores, Inc., did not provide easements or 
dedication for the additional green area.  It is the 
opinion of the county attorney and Mr. Degabrielle 
that this additional allocation is not legally 
permitted since Monteray Shores, Inc. did not 
authorize or make available the additional land for 
wastewater green area.    In addition, Carolina Water, 
permit holder, must modify the green area and legally 
acquire additional lands suitable for wastewater 
disposal.   Outside of all concerns outlined, it 
remains uncertain whether Carolina Water has legal 
authority to locate green area within the utility 
easement identified on the recorded easement plat 
(plat cabinet K, slide 49).   

 
III. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board 
of Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the 
UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would 
otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts 
can be developed subject to conditions of approval to 
minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve an SUP, certain criteria must be 
satisfied.  The criteria and suggested findings of fact are 
outlined as follows: 
 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete provided assurances for 

wastewater disposal are submitted from NC DENR and 
Carolina Water. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of 

Permissible Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 

63



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   31 

a. Chapters 3 and 10 of the UDO allow a planned unit 
development as a permissible use with a special use 
permit. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum 

requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed meet the minimum requirements 

of this ordinance. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or 
safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed development and conditions should have 

little to no negative impact on public health or 
safety. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or 

abutting property and will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The Unified Development Ordinance indicates that a 

planned unit development is allowed in the RO1 base 
zoning district and PUD overlay with a special use 
permit. 

b. The requested zoning designation meets the UDO 
allocations for a PUD. 

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use 

Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the properties as 

Full Service and Conservation within the Corolla 
subarea.  The Full Service classification supports the 
density and commercial allocations of a planned unit 
development provided design criteria is established to 
ensure commercial development protects and preserves 
the existing community.  The Conservation 
classification provides for long-term management and 
protection of significant, limited, or irreplaceable 
natural resources.  The classification is typically 
applied to areas that should not be developed 
(preserved), or if developed, done so in a very 
limited manner characterized by careful planning and 
cautious attention to the conservation of 
environmental features. The commercial allocation 
within the Conservation classification is being 
slightly reduced, and the proposed use and conditions, 
are in keeping with the LUP Policy statements and the 
Corolla subarea policy emphasis, some of which are: 

64



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   32 

 
Policy HN3:  Currituck County shall especially 
encourage two forms of residential development, each 
with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban 
sprawl: 
1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less 

land, preserving permanently dedicated open space 
and often employ on-site or community sewage 
treatment.  These types of developments are likely 
to occur primarily in the Conservation, Rural, and 
to a certain extent the Limited Services areas 
identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR 
A MIXTURE OF USES that promote a return to balanced, 
self-supporting community centers generally served 
by centralized water and sewer.  The types of 
development are contemplated for the Full Service 
Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.   

 
Policy CD8:  MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS, properly planned 
from the outside, which allow for a compatible mixture 
of residential and non-residential uses with a 
pedestrian scale and design, are encouraged.  
Similarly, businesses may be located adjoining (and 
therefore convenient to) an existing residential area, 
when such businesses can be shown to satisfy design 
considerations similar to a newly planned, pedestrian-
scaled, mixed use development.   

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to 

provide adequate public facilities, including, but not 
limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, 
and other county facilities.  Applicable state standards 
and guidelines shall be followed for determining when 
public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be 
in place or programmed to be in place within two years 
after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in 
the case of major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The county has adequate public facilities to service 

this subdivision. 
 
 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The submittal appears to meet all of the requirements for 
SUP, and staff recommends conditional approval of the SUP 
subject to the findings of fact and the following 
conditions: 
 

65



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   33 

1. Low Impact Development techniques such as cisterns 
that capture the rainwater from the roof and rain 
gardens should be provided in environmentally 
sensitive areas or lands designated Conservation by 
the 2006 Land Use Plan.  Cisterns should not discharge 
stormwater as sheet flow or concentrated flow across 
the ground as a means to drain cisterns.  Water 
captured in cisterns should be reused within the 
development through building design, for maintenance 
of the building and grounds, in LID techniques such as 
rain gardens or constructed wetlands, or other uses 
approved by the county.     (LUP Policy WQ5). 

3. All inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands should 
remain undisturbed excluding elevated walkways and 
placed into a conservation easement, preservation 
trust, or turned over to the homeowner’s association 
(LUP Policy ES2, ES3). 

4. Any modification to green area must be approved by 
Currituck County and NC DWQ prior to implementation.  
Green area shall be identified by an easement, 
illustrated on a map, and recorded in the Currituck 
County Register of Deeds.  

5. All projects, residential and non-residential, shall 
meet the minimum zoning requirements in effect at the 
time of construction. 

 

Bob Degabrielle, stated that this PUD has been recognized 
since 1998. 

Crouse Gray, Attorney, stated that there was a pending 
lawsuit on a contract to purchase this property with a 
decision to be made on June 28, 2010. 

Wyatt Booth, Attorney, would like to re-establish the 
property designation as residential. 

Mr. Gray stated that the lawsuit is on contract not 
rezoning.  Contract provided buyer has right to cancel and 
his client filed litigation on December 4, 2009.  Mr. Gray 
requested Board to defer decision until court has ruled. 

Reverend David Daniels, stated that he had plans to build a 
church with the property donated by Mr. Degabrielle. 

Chairman O’Neal closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to continue until court has ruled 
on the contract.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

66



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   34 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-15 Shingle Landing Farm:  
Request to rezone 15 acres from Agricultural (A) to 
Conditional District-Residential (CD-R). The property is 
located at 116, 121, 122, 125, and 126 Fox Lane, Tax Map 
9C, Parcels 3,4,5,6, and 7, Moyock Township. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING DATE: June 21, 2010 
Conditional District Zoning Map Amendment:  

PB 10-15 Shingle Landing Farm 
 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone 15 acres from A to CD-R. 
 
LOCATION:  Located at 116, 121, 122, 125, and 126 

Fox Lane, Moyock, NC. 
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 9C, Parcels 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 

009C00000030000 
009C00000040000 
009C00000050000 
009C00000060000 
009C00000070000 

  
OWNER: EKMS Inc. 
 Eldon L. Miller, III 

PO Box 729 
Moyock, NC  27958 

 
APPLICANT: Hyman & Robey, PC 
 PO Box 339 
 Camden, NC  27921 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-Residential (CD-R) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS:  

1. Generally, limited to all uses 
allowed in the base Residential (R) 
zoning district. 

2. No additional 404 wetlands are to be 
filled. 

3. A planted buffer will be provided 
along the western most property lines 

67



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   35 

adjacent to the Norfolk Southern 
Railroad right-of-way. 

4. The 15 acre combined tract will not 
be subdivided into more than 12 lots.  

5. Excluding drainage easements, all 
vegetation within the 404 wetland 
jurisdictional area shall be 
retained.   

 
DENSITY: The Residential (R) zoning district 

allows a residential gross density of 
1.09 du/acre. 

 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 

 Land Use Zonin
g 

NORTH: Subdivision GB/R 
SOUTH: Residential A 
EAST: Undeveloped A 
WEST: Commercial GB 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Five undeveloped, residential lots 
 
PURPOSE LAND USE:  Twelve residential lots 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the 

site as Full Service within the Moyock 
Sub-Area.  

 
The purpose of the Full Service Area 
class is to provide areas preferred for 
community centers.  Areas designated as 
Full Service are those parts of the 
county where a broad range of 
infrastructure and service investments 
have been provided or will be made 
available to the public and/or private 
sectors.  With residential development, 
base development density is 
contemplated to be 2 units per acre but 
could be increased to 3-4 units per 
acre through overlay zoning depending 
upon services available and the 
potential impact on the surround area. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Moyock Sub-
Area is to allow for predominantly low 

68



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   36 

density residential development (1-2 
units per acre).  However in areas 
where central sewer is proposed or 
existing, additional services are 
available and the character of the 
surround area supports it, higher 
densities (3-4 units per acre) could be 
considered through overlay zones. 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies 
are also relevant to this request: 
 
Policy AG3:  County ACTIONS CONCERNING 
INFRASTRUCTURE (e.g. schools, parks, 
and utilities) and regulations shall 
serve to direct new development first 
to targeted growth areas near existing 
settlements identified as Full Service 
Areas on the Future Land Use Map, 
rather than “leapfrogging” to locations 
in the midst of farmland and green 
space identified as Rural and 
Conservation areas on the Future Land 
Use Map. 

 
Policy WQ6:  Currituck County supports 
the retention or preservation of 
VEGETATED BUFFERS along the edge of 
drainage ways, streams and other 
components of the estuarine system as 
an effective, low cost means of 
protecting water quality. 

 
COMMUNITY MEETING: Community meeting was held on April 15, 

2010, and the report is attached. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The Moyock Fire Department provides 

fire protection for this area.  
Electric, telephone, cable television, 
and public water are available.  

 
FLOOD ZONE: Shaded X and Flood Zone AE(5). 
 
WETLANDS: According to the wetland delineation 

for this property, the site contains 
approximately 19,970 square feet of 
wetlands. 

 

69



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   37 

SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map 
indicates the property predominately 
contains marginal soils and 
approximately one acre non-suitable 
soils near the wetland area.   

 
 
STAFF  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the 

request to establish 15 acres to 
Conditional District- Residential (CD-
R) from Agricultural (A) based on the 
following: 

  
1. The proposed request is in general 

compliance with the Full Service 
designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan 
and the Moyock Sub-Area Policy 
Emphasis. 

 
2. The proposed zoning conditions appear 

to be consistent with the objectives 
of the 2006 Land Use Plan. (LUP 
Policies AG3, WQ5, WQ6)      
 

Outstanding Staff Concerns: The 
conditional zoning process provides an 
opportunity for an applicant to propose 
use limitations or development 
conditions that ensure development 
proposals are consistent with the 
policies set forth in adopted plans.  
Staff feels the following concerns 
could be appropriately addressed 
through the conditional zoning process: 
 
1. The proposed development is located 

south of Shingle Landing subdivision.  
While interconnection is planned 
between the proposed development to 
the south (N/F Gees Group of North 
Carolina, Inc.) and Shingle Landing, 
Phase II (N/F CTX, Inc.), it is 
unclear when and if that connection 
may occur.   Staff suggests 
interconnection be provided through 
this development to Shingle Landing, 
Phase II that will be consistent with 
LUP Policy TR8. 

 
70



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   38 

PLANNING BOARD 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Board recommended approval 

of PB 10-15 according to the 2006 Land 
Use Plan with the findings of fact and 
staff recommendations included in the 
case analysis with the exception of 
interconnection. 

 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to approve due to its consistency 
with the policies of the 2006 LUP and that the request is 
reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly 
growth and development.  Commissioner Nelms seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 

Consideration and Action:  PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy 
Motorsports Park:  Request for renewal of a special use 
permit for a privately owned outdoor recreation facility 
located at 5243 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 83, Parcel 6A, 
Poplar Branch Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DATE: June 21, 2010 

PB 07-08  Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park 
 Special Use Permit Renewal 

 
ITEM   PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports 

Park special use permit renewal request for 
a privately owned outdoor recreation 
facility.  Note:  Staff is preparing a text 
amendment to create a “Mass Gathering” use 
category that will be the most appropriate 
use classification for the events on this 
property.  This will be presented to the 
board later this summer.  
 

LOCATION 5243 Caratoke Highway 

TAX ID 0083-000-006A-0000 
 

71



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   39 

ZONING    
DISTRICT Agricultural (A)   
  
PRESENT USE Privately Owned Outdoor Recreation Facility 
 
OWNER  C.O. Partners of Jarvisburg LLC 
   Jerry and Tommy Wright 
   PO Box 24 
   Jarvisburg NC  27947 
 
APPLICANT  Dennis Anderson 
   3650 Caratoke Highway 
   Poplar Branch NC  27965 

   
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Vacant A 
SOUTH Vacant A 
EAST: Vacant A 
WEST: Vacant GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site 

as Limited Service within the Aydlett, 
Waterlily, Churches Island subarea. 

 
SIZE OF SITE 20.01 acres 
 
UTILITIES The property is served by well water.  

Port-a-johns are proposed for the special 
events.     

 
I. History of Request 

March 13, 2007 Planning Board Recommended Approval of 
SUP for Privately  Owned Outdoor Recreation Facility 
May 7, 2007 Board of Commissioners Approved SUP for 
Privately Owned  Outdoor Recreation Facility for One 
Year. 
June 18, 2007 Board of Commissioners Approved SUP for 
Privately Owned  Recreation Facility for Three Years. 

 
II. Narrative 

This SUP expires on June 18, 2010.  The applicant is 
requesting renewal of the permit.   
 

III. Findings of Fact as Presented with Original SUP Request  
 
(a) Will not endanger the public health or safety. 

 

72



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   40 

1. There will be a 250’ DOT approved positive barrier 
along the outside lanes of the racing area.  A 
positive barrier is a barrier designed to contain and 
re-direct errant vehicles.  There will be a crowd 
control fence 30’ beyond the positive barriers, then 
the bleacher area. 

 
2. The events will be professionally run and insured by 

K & K Insurance. 
 
3. The applicant will have at least two deputies and two 

EMT’s with transportation on site for each event and 
he is coordinating this with the Sherriff’s Office 
and Emergency Services. 

 
4. The applicant will provide 12 employees per event for 

traffic and crowd control. 
 
5. NCDOT expressed a concern for ease of identification 

of the driveway area; therefore, they are requiring a 
50’ apron, curb and gutter for the entrance/exit.  
NCDOT is also requiring a contingent plan in the 
event of traffic backup onto Caratoke Highway.  NCDOT 
will require the vehicles to queue internally within 
100’ of the right-of-way. (Complete) 

 
(b) Will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property. 
 

1. The Unified development Ordinance indicates that a 
privately owned outdoor recreation facility is a 
permitted land use with a special use permit in an A 
(Agricultural) zoning district. 

 
2. The surrounding land uses include: 

a. North: Vacant Zone: A 
b. South: Vacant Zone: A  
c. East:  Vacant Zone: A 
d. West: Vacant Zone: GB  

 
3. The closest residential dwelling is approximately one 

mile from the site. 
 

(c) Will be in harmony with the area in which it is 
located. 

  
1. The surrounding vicinity consists of vacant property.  
 
2. A landscape plan was approved with the site plan. 

 
73



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   41 

(d) Will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan, 
Thoroughfare Plan, or other plan officially adopted by 
the Board of Commissioners. 
 

1. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the property as a 
Limited Service Area within the Aydlett, Waterlily, 
Churches Island subarea.   “With respect to 
nonresidential uses, it is essential that the 
existing community character be preserved.  Design 
criteria should be established to ensure that 
commercial development protects and preserves the 
existing community in scale, architectural style, 
materials, landscaping, and site design.  In general, 
neighborhood commercial uses are more appropriate 
than large scale commercial complexes.  However, 
business designed to serve the tourist industry such 
as small gift shops or agri-tourism related uses 
should not be prohibited provided the character and 
intensity of the use is in keeping with the character 
of the surrounding area.”  This plan is consistent 
with the Land Use Plan. 

 
(e) Will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities, including, but not limited 
to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other 
county facilities.   

 
1.  The proposed use will not exceed the county's 

ability to provide adequate public facilities.  The 
applicant must coordinate events with the sheriff and 
fire and rescue personnel.  He has also stated that 
private security and EMT’s can be provided. 

 
 

IV. Outstanding TRC Comments/Questions from April 2010 review 
 

• Comments from Sheriff Johnson (252-453-8204) 
Generally:  Desperately need to come up with a plan that 
allows for a number of events occurring within the same 
time frame, a consistent Public Safety Plan, and consult 
law enforcement staff for analysis and ability to handle 
concurrent events. Also, is there any possibility of 
implementing a venders/business license? Several venders 
end up at these events and no one knows what they are 
selling or inspecting food. They set up out of campers 
and tents as well with no regulation.  

 
Regarding Muddy Motor Sports: 
1. Are there any new tracks planned to open in the 

future on the property of Muddy Motor Sports and what 
74



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   42 

is the type of vehicle that will be using the track 
if so (or) is there any suggestion of expansion and 
how many more spectators can be expected? 

2. Is there a current count of spectators attending the 
events over the last two years.  We may need to 
revisit the security plan based on the number in 
attendance. 

3. If an agreement is reached to provide private 
security, then we need a copy of the agreement to 
verify that service.  If security is provided with 
law enforcement, we need the same agreement so we can 
ensure the number agreed to is present at the 
scheduled events.  

4. Is the overnight camping occurring a part of the 
special use permit or will it become a part that is 
allowed? (Planning Note:  Overnight camping is not 
addressed in the existing SUP) 

5. Can the special use permit issued allow other event 
holders to use the property for their events such as 
the "Rodeo" and if so, are they held to any standard 
of security or law enforcement presence? (Planning 
Note:  THE existing SUP is for a privately owned 
outdoor recreation facility. A Rodeo can be 
classified as a recreation event).  Also does the SUP 
cover any events the applicant has at property 
located at the grave digger location?  (Planning 
Note:  The SUP only covers the Motorsports Park 
property) 

6. It was originally suggested the beer couldn't be kept 
off the property but Mr. Anderson stated he didn't 
intend to sell beer at the event. It is reported 
other organizations are now selling beer and turning 
over a portion of the profits to Muddy Motors. Some 
are being issued a permit by ALE (Chamber, Ducks 
Unlimited to name a few) but unknown how many have 
participated and if they are all obtaining a permit.  

7. Hours of operation have randomly changed and events 
have occurred into the early morning hours as a 
result of rain delays or rescheduling and events have 
been scheduled for 2 days instead of the suggested 
one.  

 
Please note:  Mr. Anderson's event has been well run 
and controlled with just a few issues requiring law 
enforcement intervention. There have been a few 
fights break out and most were as a result of 
alcohol, verbal arguments, and pushing and shoving. 
The parking area has been expanded which helps get 
traffic away from the highway.  
 

75



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   43 

The above are questions needing clarification because 
the event has been so successful and will more than 
likely grow in popularity thus increasing in 
attendance and as the Sheriff I need to handle the 
event as well as secondary results of the event with 
proper staff and planning.  

 
• Comments from Spence Castello, Chief Building Inspector 

(252-232-3378) 
1. All open building permits must be finalized. 

 
• Comments from James Mims, Fire Marshal (252-232-6641) 

1. Need Public Safety Plans.  There should be a 
different safety plan for carnivals vs. mudbogs.  The 
plans must conform to the following: 403.1.2 
Contents. The public safety plan, shall address such 
items as emergency vehicle ingress and egress, fire 
protection, emergency medical services, public 
assembly areas and the directing of both attendees 
and vehicles (including the parking of vehicles), 
vendor and food concession distribution, and the need 
for the presence of law enforcement, and fire and 
emergency medical services personnel. 

2. Need better clarification in regards to use and 
expected number of customers. 

3. Need formal agreements with Sheriff, EMS Chief, and 
Local Volunteer Fire Chief.   

4. Reminder that tents require permits. 
5. Fireworks require special permits. 
6. There are structures located where fire apparatus 

have no improved area to access them. 
7. There are structures that are greater than 400’ from 

a fire hydrant. 
8. There are structures created without building permits 

or CO for permitted structures. 
 

• Comments from Michael Carter, Chief Emergency Medical 
Services (252-232-7746) 
1. We need a number of attendees that meets and 

determines the mass gathering suggested guideline. 
2. We need to determine the number of Fire and EMS 

personnel needed for each event. 
3. We need to review and determine a true cost to cover 

these events for both Fire and EMS apparatus, 
personnel, etc.  Our current charge is $55.00 for a 
two person crew per hour, this is likely very low as 
compared to surrounding areas. 

76



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   44 

4. A command structure (ICS) for these events should be 
established and implemented as well as a case 
developed CAD. 

 
• Comments from Planning Department 

1. A Type C landscaping buffer shall be installed along 
Caratoke Highway property line.  

2. Schedule final zoning inspection. 
 

 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of this special use permit 
renewal subject to the following: 

1. All comments and questions from the April 2010 TRC 
review being adequately addressed. 

2. All events must comply with county regulations 
effective at the time of the event. 

 
Dennis Anderson, owner, stated that he has followed all the 
safety and has all the permits necessary to operate. 

David Baldwin, supports camping at site. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to approve with the findings of 
fact and staff recommendations and to allow camping and no 
trees.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion. Motion 
carried. 

Discussion of Ordinance prohibiting unattended property on 
Beach   

Ike McRee, County Attorney, reviewed the ordinance. 

Commissioner Gregory moved to adopt.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS AMENDING SECTION 10-130 OF THE CURRITUCK 
COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance 

define, regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, 
safety, or welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck finds that 
certain recreational equipment including, but not limited to tents, cabanas and umbrellas 
are left on the beach at night and otherwise discarded on the beach after the useful life of 
such items and that such items are detrimental to wildlife and the ability of persons to 
freely and safely enjoy the public beach. 

77



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   45 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 
PART I.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by 
adding Division 7 and Section 10-131 to Article II of Chapter 10 of the Code of 
Ordinances to read as follows: 
DIVISION 7.  DUNE AND BEACH PRESERVATION 
Sec. 10-131.  Unattended property on beach. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to leave between the hours of sunset and 
sunrise any property, including but not limited to volleyball, badminton and tennis nets, 
poles, tents, horseshoe stakes, croquet courses, grills, umbrellas and recreational 
equipment, cabanas, canopies, or any other personal property items on the beach strand as 
defined in Section 10-51 of this Code of Ordinances. 
PART II.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
PART III.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Appointment to Planning Board   

Chairman O’Neal moved to appoint Bobby Bell.  Commissioner 
Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Appointment to Fire and EMS Advisory Board   

continued 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of $2,200 matching funds for Library 

Computers 
2. Adoption of Corolla Resort Special Use Permit 
3. Request to waive tipping fee for Tammy Kelly  
4. Approval of June 7, 2010, Minutes 
5. Resolution supporting DOT Secondary Road Program 
6. Ordinance to allow alcohol at Knotts Island Ruritan 

Club 
 
Commissioner Gregory moved to approve. Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried with Chairman O’Neal 
and Commissioners Taylor and Nelms voting no. 
 

RESOLUTION 
SECONDARY ROAD CONSTRUCTION 

 
Project listing for Currituck County  

Fiscal Year 2009-2011 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that during their regular Board meeting held 
on June 21, 2010 upon motion by Commissioner Gregory and seconded by 
Commissioner Aydlett and unanimously voted upon, the Currituck County Board of 

78



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   46 

Commissioners hereby support the Proposed Secondary Road Improvement Program for 
fiscal year 2009 thru 2011 as presented by the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (estimated total allocation of $519,593.03).  
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AMENDING SECTION 10-133 OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county 

may by ordinance define, regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, 
omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the 
county; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC. Gen. Stat. §153A-169 a county 

may by ordinance regulate the use of county property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of 

Commissioners for the County of Currituck, North Carolina 
as follows: 

 
PART I. The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North 
Carolina is amended by rewriting Section 10-133 of the Code 
of Ordinances to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 10-133. Prohibited Activities. 
 

No person using or occupying county parks shall drink, 
consume or possess any unsealed or opened container of 
alcoholic liquor or alcoholic beverage, nor shall any such 
person consume alcoholic liquor or any mixture thereof 
within the boundaries of such recreation areas. Illegal 
drugs and abusive language/behavior is not allowed in 
county parks. Notwithstanding the forgoing, a person using 
or occupying that county park known as the Knotts Island 
Ruritan Club Park may drink, consume, possess or serve 
alcoholic beverages during Ruritan Club sponsored 
events pursuant to rules and regulations adopted from time 
to time by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
PART II. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
PART III. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 
 
Commissioner’s Report 
No comments 

79



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   47 

County Manager’s Report 

No comments 

Closed Session: pursuant to GS 143-318.11(3) to consult 
with attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client 
privilege and A-6, personnel. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to go into closed session as 
stated above.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken. 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Call to Order 

Public Hearing and Action on FY 2010-2011 Budget 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, the public hearing was closed 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
CURRITUCK COUNTY TOURISM DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY      
BUDGET ORDINANCE       
For the Year Ending June 30, 2011       
          
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Tourism Development Authority, County of Currituck,  
North Carolina that the following estimated resources, appropriations, and memoranda are adopted  
for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011. 
          
          
SECTION 1.  OCCUPANCY TAX - PROMOTION       
          
 A. Estimated Resources:       

   Occupancy Tax   
      
8,772,600     

   Investment earnings   
             
100,000     

   Appropriated Fund Balance    
           
95,673     

      
      
8,968,273     

80



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   48 

          

      TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 
      
8,968,273     

          
 B. Appropriations:       

   Occupancy Tax - Promotion  $ 
      
3,011,254     

   Occupancy Tax - Tourist related   
      
5,957,019     

       
      
8,968,273     

          

      TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 
      
8,968,273     

          

   
The information above is presented in summary form.  Complete detailed  
information is on file with the Finance Director. 

          
          
          
SECTION 2.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND 
RESTRICTIONS     
          

 
The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the funds as  
contained herein under the following conditions. 

          
 a.  

   

He may transfer amounts within the same department within the same fund  
up to Ten Thousand dollars ($10,000) providing an official report on such  
transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners on a quarterly basis. 

          
 b.  

   

He may transfer amounts between departments within the same fund up to  
One Thousand dollars ($1,000) providing an official report on such transfers  
at the next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

          
 c.  

   

He may appropriate fund balance to salaries and benefits in order to increase  
salaries of employees who have met requirements to increase certifications  
required by the County providing an office report on such transfers at the next  
regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

          
 d.  
   

He may make interfund loans for a period of not more than sixty days (60). 

 e.  
   

He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency  
line items within any funds. 

SECTION 29.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS       
          

 
The County Manager or the County Attorney are hereby authorized to execute  
contractual documents under the following conditions: 

          
 a.  
   

They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which  
do not require formal competitive bid procedures. 

 b.  

   

They may award contracts, reject bids, re-advertise for bids, waive bid  
bonds or bid deposit requirements, and waive performance and payment  
bond requirements for all formal bids of apparatus, supplies, materials  
and equipment as stated in G. S. 143-129. 

          

81



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   49 

 c.  

   

They may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies,  
and materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental  
appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of one year  
or less and within budgeted departmental appropriations; and (3) services 
 which are within budgeted departmental appropriations. 

          
 d.  

   

They may execute grant agreements to and from public and nonprofit  
organizations which are within budgeted appropriations, unless a grantor  
organization requires execution by the Board of Commissioners. 

          
 e.  

   

They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which  
are of a duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental  
appropriations. 

          
SECTION 30.  MEMORANDA       
          
 A.  Officers:       
   Daniel F. Scanlon II CPA is the Budget Officer     

   
Gwen H. Keene is the Clerk to the 
Board       

   
Mary Gilbert is the Deputy Clerk to the 
Board      

   Donald Ikerd McRee is the County Attorney      
   Sandra L. Hill CPA is the County Finance Director    
   Bridget T. Brinkley is the Deputy Finance Director    
          
 B.  Facsimile Signatures:       
   

   

   

The use of facsimile signature machines, signature stamps, or similar devices  
in signing checks and drafts is hereby authorized; however, off-line checks  
and pre-audit certification requires in the minimum of one original authorizing  
signature.  The Finance Director is hereby charged with the custody of all  
facsimile machines, stamps, plates or other devices. 

          
 C.  Official Depositories:       
   The Official depositories of the Tourism Development Authority are:   

   
   East Carolina Bank, Currituck, North 
Carolina     

      The Bank of Currituck, Moyock, North Carolina    
      Bank of America, North Carolina       

   
   Bank of the Commonwealth, North 
Carolina      

   
   Bank of Hampton Roads (dba Gateway Bank), North 
Carolina    

   
   Branch Bank and Trust, North 
Carolina       

      North Carolina Cash Management Trust, Charlotte, North Carolina   
      Wachovia Bank, North Carolina       
      Wells Fargo, North Carolina       
             
 D.  Daily Deposits:       
   
   

Daily deposits are required by all departments when the amount of money  
held on hand sums to Two Hundred Fifty dollars ($250). 

          
 E.  Returned Check or Electronic Funds Transfer Fees:    
   
   

The Tourism Development Authority will assess a returned check charge  
consistent with G. S. 25-3-512 on all checks or electronic funds transfers  

82



June 21, 2010, BOC Minutes   50 

   

returned to the County due to insufficient or unavailable funds, except for  
the payment of taxes. The returned check fee will be $25.00 per item returned.   
This fee will also be charged for ACH or credit card transactions that are not  
paid due to insufficient funds.  The penalty for returned checks and electronic  
funds transfers for payment of taxes are governed by G. S. 105-357(2). 

          
 F.  Policy on Appropriations:       
   

   

The Tourism Development Authority will not consider supplemental appropriations  
for any service, function, purpose or activity that could have been reasonably  
considered during the budget process. 

          
SECTION 31.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE       
          

 
The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this budget ordinance for  
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 

83



R E S O L U T I O N

WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held
on July 6 2010 authorized the following pursuant to GS
160A and 270b that the property list attached be
declared surplus property

See attached list

ADOPTED this the 6th day of July 2010

S Paul ONeal Chairman
Currituck County Board of
Commissioners

ATTEST

Gwen H Keene CMC
Clerk to the Board

84



Lower Currituck Vol Fire Department
P O Box 207

Grandy NC 27939

Ph 2524532761 Fax 2524534579

June 14 2010

Currituck County
Board of Commissioners
Att Gwen Keene

POB 39

Currituck NC 27929

Commissioners

I have been directed by the Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department Inc

Board of Directors to obtain your approval to surplus the following obsolete fire

apparatus motor vehicles and boat

1 1950 Chevrolet pumper

2 1965 FordHowe hose wagon

3 1984 FordGrumman pumper

4 1989 Chevrolet Step Van

5 1990 Chevrolet Suburban

6 1992 Mercury Sedan

7 1992 Ford Ambulance

8 1978 20 Boston Whaler

VinIA80377714TWG4313
VinlF70MU665904
Vin1FDPF82K2EVA36868
Vin1GCHP32KXK3309166
Vin 1 GNGV26KOLF38649

Vin2MELM75W4NX696554
Vin 1 FDKE3 OM7NHB 5 0612

Ser9937

Please add this to the County Board of Commissioners Agenda Thank you

William Bill Jones
Chief

LCVFD

85



1 0 10.5 MilesFire Station Location5 Mile Road Travel Distance
Knotts Island Station

86



Attached is a new map indicating the 5 mile insurance district for 
Knott's Island Vol. Fire Department.  It has been changed to represent 
the change of the departments location.  This now will yield a 
insurance benefit to the northern most residents of the Island.  Please 
add this to the earliest available Commissioner's agenda.  The NC 
Department of Insurance will need their approval to apply this change.   
 
James Mims, Fire Marshal / Safety Director 
Currituck County 
PO Box 240 / 147 Courthouse Road 
Currituck, NC 27929 
Office: 252-232-6641 
Cell: 252-207-7929 
e-mail - jmims@co.currituck.nc.us      
 

87



Resolution 
Requesting Secondary Road Improvement Funding 

 Pine Circle, Wedgewood Lakes 
 

WHEREAS, Pine Circle, Wedgewood Lakes is in need of repairs to bring the road to 
minimum NCDOT standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total estimated cost for the repairs is $20,000.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners supports funding from the Secondary Road Improvement funds in the 
amount of $20,000.00 for Pine Circle, in Wedgewood Lakes as long as it does not impact 
previously programmed projects. 
 
ADOPTED this the 6th day of July, 2010. 
 
ATTEST     _________________ 
      S. Paul O’Neal 
__________________   Chairman 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
  

88


	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	10-19 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	10-20 Case Analysis

	Appointment to Fire and EMS Advisory Board
	FEAB Appointment

	Appointment to Stormwater Advisory Board
	Stormwater Advisory Board List
	Stormwater Advisory Board Form

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Approval of June 21, 2010, Minutes
	June 21 Minutes

	Resolution to declare obsolete property surplus as requested by Lower Currituck VFD
	LCVFD Surplus Property

	Approval of Knotts Island VFD new map indicating the 5 mile insurance district
	map
	report

	Resolution to DOT for funding improvements for Pine Circle
	resolution


